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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major ftmd and the aggregate remaining fimd information of the Ouachita Parish School 
Board (the School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively 
comprise the School Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility ofthe School Board's management Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance v^th auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, issued by the Louisiana Society of Certified Public 
Accountants and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
firee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accoimting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opimon, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position ofthe govemmental activities, each major fimd and 
the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Ouachita Parish School Board, as of June 30, 
2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, 
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accoimting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 18, 2009 on our consideration of the School Board's intemal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting or on 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Independent Auditors' Report 

compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjimction with this report in considering the results 
of our audit. 

The "Management's Discussion and Analysis" presented on pages 5 through 21 and the 
"Budgetary Comparison Schedules" presented on pages 97 through 101 are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements but are supplementary infonnation required by the Govemmental 
Accounting Standards Board, We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation 
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Ouachita Parish School Board's basic financial statements. The Other 
Supplemental Information (including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards) as listed 
in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part ofthe basic financial statements. The Other Supplemental Infomiation has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

December 18,2009 

Page 2 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
(FART A) 



CLAIBORNE ELEMENTARY 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Management's discussion and analysis ofthe Ouachita Parish School Board's financial 
performance provides an ovei'all review ofthe School Board's financial activities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to bok at 
the School Board's financial perfonnance as a whole. The reader should read this 
discussion in conjunction with the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, and the 
financial statements, which are all included in this report, to enhance their understanding 
of the Ouachita Parish School Board's financial performance. 

COMMnrTED 
Financial Highlights 

Local ad valorem taxes in the General Fund increased by $940,420 or 7.6 percent 
due to increased property assessments and new construction. 
Local sales tax revenues increased by $644,702 or 1.7%. 
State Funding (Minimum Foundation Program - MFP) increased by $7,592,523 
fi-om $106,261,898 to $113,854,421. 
Federal sources of revenue increased by $284,182 or 1,6 percent. 
The General Fund reported a decrease for the year in fond balance of $500,166 
fiom $17,297,206 to $16,797,040. The fund balance at June 30, 2009 is 12.9%. of 
General Fund expenditures. 
The East Ouachita Bond District sold $9,785 millbn in general obligation bonds 
for new consti'uction and renovations. 
The West Ouachita Bond District sold $5 million in revenue bonds for new 
constmction and renovations. 
The West Ouachita Bond District refinanced the 1998 and 1999 revenue bonds 
issued for $25 million and $20 million, respectively, resulting in a savings to 
district of over $1 million. 
The School Board's bond rating for the East Ouachita Bond District and the West 
Ouachita Bond District were increased to a AA-. 
Instmctional staff received a state fimded pay raise of $1,019 and support 
employees received a state fimded one-time supplement of $1,000. 
The School Board authorized a pay increase for support and instructional staff 
fimded by the General Fund. 
C^pitalizatbn value of capital assets increased from $1,000 to $5,000. 



COMMITTED 
*':r^/S5w" trs///^ /Afcs Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

This CAFR consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. 
These statements are organized so the reader can understand the Ouachita Parish School 
Board as a whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an 
increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide information about 
the activities of the School Board as a whole and present a longer-term view of the 
School Board's finances. Also included in the financial statements are the Fund 
Financial Statanents, which report on governmental activities of the School Board. 
These statements provide more detail than the Government-wide Financial Statements 
about the services that were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future 
spending in the School Board's more significant funds as well as all other nonmajor 
funds. The General Fund is the Ouachita Parish School Board's most significant fund. 

^ \ ' 

COMMITTED 

""le^^f^"" Reporting the School Board as a Wlwle 

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report infonnation about the 
School Board as a whole and its activities to inform the reader of the School Board's 
financial performance during the 2009 fiscal year. In short, is the School Board better 
off fmancially or is it woî se off financially than it was this time last year? These 
statements report all assets and liabilities ofthe School Board on the accrual basis of 
accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis 
of accounting reports all ofthe current year's revenues and expraises regaidless of when 
cash is received or paid. 

These two statements rqport the School Board's net assets and the change in those assets. 
This change in net assets is important because it tells the reader whetha:, for the School 
Board as a whole, the financial position ofthe School Board improved or declined. The 
causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some financial, some not. Non-
financial factors affecting the School Board include the parish's sales and property tax 
bases and the state arn! federal government's continued fimding. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report the governmental 
activities ofthe School Board, Most ofthe School Board's programs and services are 
reported here including instruction, support savices, operating and maintenance of plant, 
student transportation, and feeding programs. 



COMMITTED 

'^'^^J^i^T'Reporting tlteSclwol Board's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The analysis of the School Board's major fiinds begins on page 30. Fund Financial 
Statements provide detailed information about the School Boaid's major fijnds. The 
School Board uses many funds to account for a multitude of JBnancial transactions. 
However, these fond financial statements focus on the School Board's most significant 
fijnds. The School Board's major governmental fiinds are the General Fund, the DMnct 
#1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, the West Ouachita Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund, 
and the East Ouachita 2009 Construction Capital Projects Fund, 

The West Ouachita Bond No. 2 Ddrt Service Fund changed to major fimd in 2008-09 dues 
to the refinancing ofthe 1998 and 1999 West Ouachita Bond District's revenue bonds-
The East Ouachita 2009 Construction Capital Projects Fund changed from a nomnajor 
fimd in 2007-08 to a major fimd in 2008-09 due to the East Ouachita Bond District 
selling $9,785 million in general obligation bonds for construction and renovations in the 
district. The East Ouachita 2008 Constraction Capital Projects Fund changed from a 
major fund in 2007-08 to a nonmajor ftmd in 2008-09 due to using the bond proceeds 
from a prior year issue on construction projects. 

Governmental Funds 

Most ofthe School Board's activities are rqx)rted as Govemmental Funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of those fiinds and the balances left at year-end 
available for spending fn future periods. These funds are r^orted using an accounting 
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial 
assets tiiat can readily be converted to cash. The Governmental Funds' statements 
provide a detailed short-term view of the School Board's general govemment operations 
and the basic services it provides. Govermnental Fund informatwn helps the reader 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the 
near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or difference) between 
govemmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities) and Governmental Funds is reconciled in the financial statements. 

Proprietary Funds 

The School Board is self-iasured for workers' com ŝensation and general liability 
insurance coverage, and maintains policies with large deductibles for prop^y and fleet 
vehicle insurance. A summary of the School Board's insurance coverage at June 30, 
2009, has been included in the Statistical Section in the schedule titled "Insurance 
Coverage Data". Transactions related to meeting the claims incurred in these areas are 
accounted for in the Intemal Service Proprid:ary Fund. Expenses in the Internal Service 
Fund are recognized as claims are incurred. Liabihties are recognized for incurred but 



unpaid claims. The Intemal Service Proprietaiy Fund transactions are reported on pages 
40 through 43 in a separate section consisting of a Comparative Statement of Net Assets; 
a Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and a 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows. 

COMMITTED 

""tSS^Sffi" The School Board as Trustee 

Reporting the School Board's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The School Board is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its student activity funds and the 
Migrant Education fbnds of certain other parishes. All ofthe School Board's fiduciary 
activities are reported in a separate Comparative Statem^t of Fiduciary Assets and 
Liabilities on page 45. These activities have been excluded from the School Board's 
other financial statements because the School Board cannot use these assets to finance its 
operations. The School Board is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these 
fiinds are used for their intended puiposes. 

The School Board as a Whole 

The School Boaid's net assets decreased by $19.2 million, from $117.2 million at Jurae 
30,2008, to $98.0 million at June 30, 2009, Ofthe $98.0 million of net assets at June 30, 
2009, $17,6 million were restricted. Restricted net assets are reported separately to show 
le^al constraints fix)m debt covenants and enabling legislatbn that limit the School 
Board's ability to use those net assets for day-to-day operatfons. The following analysis 
focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and change in net assets (Table 2) of the School 
Board's govemmental activities. 



Ju 

Assets 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 
LiabiUtiies 
Cuixent and other liabilities 
Long-teiuu liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, nd 
Restricted 
Um'estricted 
Total net assets 

Table 1 
Governmental Activities 

NetAssets 
ne 30,2009 and June 30,20 

(in Millions) 

, of related debt 

08 

June 30, 
2009 

$108,9 
198.0 
306.9 

23.1 
185.8 
208.9 

87.5 
17.6 
(7.1) 

$98.0 

2008 

$105.3 
191.2 
296,5 

23.2 
156.1 
179.3 

88.9 
15.5 
12.8 

$117.2 

The negative balance of $7.1 million in unrestricted assets represents the accumulated 
results of all past years' operations. In theory, it means that if we had to pay off all of our 
bills today including all of our noncapital Habilities (compensated absences and unfimded 
other post employment benefits for ^^ample) and soH all of our assets at their current 
value, we would not have enough fiinds to pay off all of our debt by $7.1 millioa 

The results of this year's operations for the School Board as a whole are reported in the 
Statement of Activities on page 27. Table 2 reports the information from the Statement 
of Activities in a different format so that total revenue for the year can be more easily 
identifiable. 



Table 2 
Governmental Activities 
Changes in Net Assets 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 
(in millions) 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Local grants 
State grants and entitlements 
Federal grants 

General revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
State Minimum Foundation Program 
Interest on investments 
Other general revenues 

Total revenues 
Functions/Program Expenses: 
Instruction: 
Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Vocational programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 
Adult/continuing education 

Support sei-vices: 
Pupil support services 
Instructional staff support services 
General administration 
School administration 
Business so^ices 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Noninstructional so^ices: 
Food services operations 
Community services programs 

Long-term obligations: 
loto-est on long-tenn oblations 

Total expenses 
Decrease in net assets before special item 
Special item - gain on sale of "old** Claiborne Elementary 
Decrease in net assets 

Year Ended 
Jnne 30, 

2009 

$2.4 
.9 

8.1 
11.6 

18.0 
37.7 

112.2 
1.9 
2.9 

20L7 

92.8 
24.0 

2.0 
2.1 
5.9 
.5 

8.9 
12.1 
1.3 

1L9 
3,3 

22.9 
11.1 
3.4 

12.1 
.1 

6.5 

m9 
(i9;2)" 

fsi^iS 

2008 

$2.0 
L l 
5.9 

17.4 

16.9 
37.0 

106.3 
3.0 
3.6 

193.2 

90.8 
22.9 

L6 
2.0 
5.5 
.5 

8.4 
1L5 
2.7 

11.5 
3.S 

19.2 
10.9 
3.4 

11.5 
.1 

5.6 
'211.9" 
(18.7^ 

1-2 

iw:^' 
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Ouacliita Parish School Board's 2008-09 revenues compared to 2007-08 revenues are 
presented bebw: 

2008-09 Revenues 
(mfllfons) 

2007-08 Revenues 
(mid tons) 

$29.0 $26.4 

$172.7 
$166.6 

B Program Revenues 
G3 Genera) Revenues 

ffl Program Revenues 
S General Revenues 

Ouachita Parish School Board's 2008-09 expenditures compared to 2007-08 expenditures 
are presented below: 

2008-09 Expenditures 
(millions) 

$12.2 $6.5 

$74.3 $127.3 

2007-08 Expenditures 
(millions) 

$11.6 $5.8 

$71.4 $123.3 

ES Instructional 
B Support Services 
DNon-ln&trucUonal Services 
D Long-temi Obligations 

9 Instmctional 
HSupport Services 
DNon-InstrucUonal Services 
• Long-term Obligations 

Governmental Activities 

As reported in the Statement of Activities on page 27, net assets of the School Board 
decreased by $19.2 million. The following factors helped contribute to this net decrease: 

Major increases in 2008-09 revenues: 
• Incarease in ad valorem taxes - Ad valorem taxes in the parish have been 

increasmg at a steady rate fbr the last several years. Property values hi the parish 
have been increasing due to new construction and valuing previously constructed 
houses at current market value. 

• Increase in sales tax collections - Sales tax collections increased at an average of 
1.2 percent in 2008-09. The general economy ofthe parish continues to show a 
stow, Steady growth resulting in increases in sales tax revenues. Part of the 
increase in sales tax collections was due to pipeline construction in the area, 

• Change in MFP fimding formula - The State Legislature made changes to ttie 
factors in the MFP funding formula and the state funded a $1,019 instructtonal 
staff raise and a $1,000 one-thne support employee pay supplement resulting in 
$7.6 million additional fimding for general operations and for emptoyee pay raisies 
and pay supplements. 

II 



Major changes in the cost of govemmental activities 

• Increase in salaries and benefits of $6 million - As previously stated the 
Legislature approved a salary increase for the certified staff and a one-time pay 
supplement for support ranployees. Also, the Board approved a pay increase fbr 
certified and support employees. 

Major changes in capital assets and debi 

• Decrease in investraient in capital assets, net of related debt - Capital assets, net of 
related debt decreased by approximately $1.4 million. The decrease was due to 
issuing additional debt that ofifeet the increase in coital assets. 

• Increase in outstanding bonded debt - Long-term outstanding bonded debt ofthe 
School Board had a net increase of $9.3 millton as the result of selling $9,785 
millioa of general obligatton bonds and $5 million of revenue bonds. 

The cost of govemmental activities exceeding restricted state and Federal grants and 
charges for services must be paid by the citizens of Ouachita Parish and unrestricted state 
grants. The foUowing presentation shows the portion of govemmental activities that 
must be paid by the citizens of Ouachita Parish and um-estricted state grants compared to 
the 2007-08 fiscal year. 

Funtflng of Oovernmental Activities FuncSng of Oovemmenlal Activities 
2008-09 20D7-08 
(mailons) (millions) 

$69.7, — »«^«-

$107.1 
$113.0 

B Unrestricted State Grants tB Local Revenues Q Unrestricted State Grants S Locsl Revenues 

Table 3 presents the total cost of each of the School Board's five largest foncttons -
regular programs, special education programs, instructtonal staff support services, plant 
services, and food service operations as well as each program's net cost (total cost less 
revenues generated by the activities). Net cost shows the financial burden that was 
placed on the School Board's taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing this 
informatton allows our citizens to consider the cost of each fonctton in comparison to the 
benefits they believe are provided by that functton. 

12 



Table 3 
Year Ended June 30, 2009 
Govemmental Activities 

(in millions) 
(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended June 30,2008) 

Total Cost 
of Services 

2009 
$92.8 
24.0 
12.1 
22.9 
12.1 

163.9 
57.0 

$220.9 

2008 
$90.8 

22.9 
11.5 
19.1 
11.5 

155.8 
56.1 

$211.9 

Net Cost 
of Services 

2009 
$90.9 
21.1 
7.3 

21.9 
4.1 

145.3 
46.6 

$191.9 

2008 
$88.5 
21.1 
6 S 

18.5 
4.4 

139.0 
46.4 

$185.4 

Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Instructional staff support services 
Plant services 
Food service operattons 

Subtotal 
All others 
Total 

The School Board Funds 

The School Board uses funds to help it control and manage money for particular 
purposes. Accounting for money for particular purposes in different fiinds helps the 
reader to determine whether the School Board is being accoxmtable for the resources 
taxpayers and others provide to it and it may also give the reader more insight into the 
School Board's overall financial health. 

The School Board's govemmental funds had a fund balance of $83,203,335 at June 30, 
2009, vMch is an increase of $3,702,551 over the previous year's fund balance. The 
primary reasons for the change are: 

General Fund - The General Fund, the principal operating fund of the School 
Board, deci-eased its fimd balance by $500,166 fix)m $17,297,206 at June 30,2008 
to $16,797,040 at June 30, 2009. This represents a 2.9 percent decrease in fiiad 
balance. In 2005-06 the General Fund's fund balance reached 19 per cent of 
General Fund expenditures. The Boai*d felt that the fiand balance was excessive 
and has tried to reduce it over the last 3 years. In 2008-09 the Board adopted a 
formal policy that stated that the General Fxmd's fund balance should be 
maintained between 10 and 15 per cent of General Fund expendittires. 

Revenue in the General Fund had a net increase of $7,468,977. Ad vatorem taxes 
and the state MFP funding were up $940,420 and $7,493,923, respectively. 
Interest eamings decreased by $875,009 or 42.3 per c«it. The increase in ad 
valorem taxes was due to an increase b property assessment values and new 
construction. The MFP funding was up due to the State Legislature changing 
some ofthe fectors in the formula and funding a $1,019 certified employee pay 
raise and a $1,000 support employee one-time pay supplement. Interest earnings 
wei'e down due to declining investment rates. 

13 



General Fund expenditures increased by $3,091,220. Expenditures for salaries 
and related benefits, which consist of 88.8 percent of total General Fumd 
expenditures, were the main reasons for the increase in expenditures. Salaries 
increased by $4.4 millioa The increase in salaries was due to the state-fiinded 
raise for certified employees of $1,019 and the one-time $1,000 support emptoyee 
pay supplement. Also, the Board authorized a pay increase for both certified and 
support emptoyees to be paid fi:om the General Fund. Related benefits increased 
by approximately $500,000 as a result ofthe pay raises. UtiUties, fuel costs, asid 
health care costs leveled out in 2008-09 and showed very little increase. One 
millton dollars worth of health care benefits that are normally paid by the Genei-al 
Fund were paid by the District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund in 2008-09. 

In previous years, the General Fund has been making transfers of approximately 
$500,000 to the Air Condittoning Redemption Special Revenue Fund, In 2008-
09, the School Board did not transfer any funds from the General Fund to the Air 
Condittoning Redemption Fund. In 2008-09 the General Fund transferred 
$1,495,672 to the School Food Seivice Special Revenue Fund to eliminate a 
deficit that had accumulated over several years. 

District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund - The fund balance ofthe District 
#1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund decreased by $418,237. The fund balance 
decreased fiom $14,826,241 at June 30,2008 to $14,408,004 at June 30,2009. In 
2008-09 sales tax collections increased by $68,176 or 1.1 percent, as compared to 
a 5.1 percent increase in 2007-08. Baintngs on investments decreased by 
$321,755 or 40.1 pei'cent as interest rates declined substantially in 2008-09. 
Expenditures in the fimd increased by $734,558. The main reason for the increase 
in expenditures in the fimd was due to the fund paying $1 million of health caire 
benefits that are normally paid by the General Fund. Other expenditures in the 
fund remained about the same as in the previous year. 

West Ouachita Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund - The fimd balance in the West 
Ouachita Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund increased by $1,491,770. The inciease 
was the result of a transfer from the Capital Projects Funds to the West Ouachita 
Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund to meet the bond reserve requirements for tlie 
revenue bonds. Expenditures, Other Financing Sources, and Other Uses in tlie 
fimd increased by $1,144,307, $32,010,542, and $29,374,465, respectively due to 
refinancing the 1998 and 1999 revenue bonds issued for $25 million and $20 
millton, respectively. 

East Ouachita 2009 Construction Capital Projects Fund - The fiind balance in 
t]>e East Ouachita 2009 Construction Capital Projects Fund increased by $2.5 
million as the result of issuing $9,785 million of general obligation bonds and 
depositing the proceeds in the fimd, The fund had $7.0 million of construction 
projects during the year, resulting in a net increase in fimd balance of $2.5 
millton. 

14 



Nonmajor Governmental Funds - The nonmajor Other Govemmental Funds 
had a net increase in their fund balances of $620,314. The increase in the fund 
balances is due to the Special Revenue Funds mcreasing their fund balances by a 
net of $3,210,448. The increase in fund balance in the Special Revenue Funds 
was due mainly to the West Ouachita Sales Tax Fund, which increased its fiund 
balance by $1,763,696. This fund is used for paying the principal and interest of 
the revenue bonds and paying for construction projects. The Board felt the fund 
balance in the account was tow and that it needed to be increased to ensure that 
adequate funds w^e available to meet the bond requirements. Therefore, a 
minimal amount of renovations were funded fiom this fund in 2008-09 to bufild 
the fund balance up. The School Food Service Special Revenue Fund had an 
increase in its fund balance of $1,171,245 as the result of a $1,495,672 transfer 
fit)m the General Fund to eliminate the accumulated deficit in the fund. The other 
nonmajor Special Revenue Funds had small changes in their fund balances. 

The Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds had decî eases in their 
fimd balances of $303,937 and $2,286,197, respectively. The deci'ease in the 
Debt Service Funds is the result of the excess revenues collected in the West 
Ouachita Bond Fund for the payment ofthe debt service requirements on the 2001 
general obligatton bonds paid out in 2005-06 used for constructton pi-ojects. The 
reason for the large decrease in fijnd balance in the Capital Project Funds was due 
to spending $5.7 million on constmction projects with bond proceeds fiom bond 
sales in previous years. Revenue bonds totaling $5 millton were sold in 2008-09 
and deposited into the West Ouachita 2008 Constructton Fund. The bond 
proceeds will be used to renovate schools in the bond district. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The School Board, in accordance with state law, must adopt a budget on the General 
Fund and all Special Revenue Funds by S^tember 15. In accordance with state law the 
School Board may have variances of 5 percent of total revenues or expenditure in a fund 
before it is legally requh-ed to amend the budget. The School Board adopted its 2008-09 
original budget on SqDtember 9, 2008, and revised the budget on April 7 and May 19, 
2009. The original estimated General Fund revenues increased by .7% or $867,419 fi'Otm 
$129,205,561 to $130,072,980. The major change in budgeted revenue was an increase 
m state funding (MFP) of $763,011 and an increase in ad valorem tax revenue of 
$166,317. Eammgs on investment revenues were dea-eased by $500,000 or 33 pwcKit. 

The original estimated charges to appropriations decreased fix)m the original budget to 
the final budget by $1,470,032 or A%, The Board decided to fimd $1 million of health 
care benefits fiom the District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund that were originally 
included in the General Fund's budget. Salaries and related benefits increased by 
$338,873 fix)m the original budget due to increasing instructional staff to tower pupil 
teacher rattos. 

Other financing uses - transfers out increased fix>m $1,267,952 in the original budget to 
$3,007,710 in the final budget. The increase of $1.7 millton is due to the Board deciding 

15 



to eliminate the deficit in the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund with an 
appropriation fiom the General Fund of $1,150,000. The Boai'd also decided to make a 
transfer of $494,300 to the District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund to cov«- a deficit 
in the designated faciUty maintenance and operation account. 

COMMITTED 
""Jr^^ST' Capital Assets and Debt Admhiistrafion 
Capital Assets 
Capital Assets of the School Board used in performance of genial School Board 
functions are recorded in the Fund Financial Statements as expenditures when purchased. 
The amount represents the original cost ofthe assets. Depreciation of capital assets is not 
recognized in the Fund Financial Statements, as explained in the Notes to the Basic 
Financial Statements. In the Govemment-wide Financial Statements the capital assets are 
recorded as assets at their original cost at the time of purchase or their feir market value, 
if donated. Depreciation of capital assets has been recognized in the Government-wide 
Financial Statements. 

At June 30, 2009, as reported on the Statement of Net Assets, the School Board had 
$198.0 million mvested in land, buildings and improvements, fiimiture and equipment, 
and construction in progress, net of depreciation. Net capital assets mcreased by $6.8 
million or 3.5 percent during the current fiscal year. Net assets were increasing on an 
average of $25 million per year from the year 2000 until about 2005 when constmction 
stowed down and net assets started increasing by appioximately $1 million per year. In 
2007-08 construction started again as the result of selling additional general obligation 
bonds and revenue bonds in 2007-08 and in 2008-09. As a result, net assets have 
increased by an average of approximately $4 million the last two years. Renovatton 
projects were the main reason for the $6.8 millton inci-ease in capital assets. 

In 2008-09 the School Board, based on the Louisiana Department of Education's 
recommendation, increased the capitalization value of capital assets from $1,000 to 
$5,000. The change in capitalizatton value of capital assets was implemented 
prospectively from July 1, 2009. For more detail of capital assets, see Note 7 ofthe 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. Table 4 presents capital assets net of 
depreciation at June 30,2009. 

Table 4 
Capital Assets at Year-end 

Net of Depreciation 
Goveromental Activities 

(With Comparative Totals at June 30,2008) 
Jnne 30, 

2009 2008 
Land $6,067,839 $6,059,839 
Buildings and improvements 171,427,046 166,355,712 
Fumiture and equipment 11,755,873 13,001,564 
Constructton in progress - buildings 8.755.292 5.826.932 
Total $198.006.050 $191.244.047 
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Debt 

At June 30, 2009, the School Board had $137,337,525 in bonds and limited tax 
certificates of indebtedness outstandmg, net of deferred amount of refunding and 
unamortized bond discount. Ofthe $137,337,525 bonds and limited tax certificates of 
indebtedness outstanding, $6,960,831 are due within one year. Table 5 summarizes 
bonds and limited tax certificates of indebtedness outstanding at June 30,2009. 

Tables 
Outstanding Debt 

June 30,2009 and 2008 
Govemmental Activities 

June 30, __^ 
2009 2008 

G^ieral obligation bonds: 
1999 East Ouachita - School improvements $ - $925,000 
2000 East Ouachita - School improvements 480,000 935,000 
2005 East Ouachita - School improvements 
(refinanced 2000 bonds) 12,215,000 12,305,000 

2006 East Ouadiita - School improvements 
(refinanced 1999 bonds) 21,525,000 21,600,000 

2007 East Ouachita - School improvements 9,540,000 9,755,000 
2008 East Ouachita - School hnprovements 9,780,000 10,000,000 
2008 East Ouachita - School improvements 9,785,000 
Less defeixed amount of refimding (83,093) (308,692) 
Unamortized bond discount - (28,326) 

Revenue bonds: 
1998 West Ouachita - School improvements 2,670,000 19,365,000 
1999 West Ouachita - School improvements 2,275,000 15,540,000 
2000 West Ouachita - School improvements 605,000 885,000 
2001 West Ouachita- School improvements 6,445,000 6,675,000 
2002 West Ouadiita - School improvements 2,680,000 2,735,000 
2006 West Ouachita - School improvements 
(refinanced 2000 bonds) 8,155,000 8,210,000 

2007 West Ouachita- School improvements 11,500,000 11,950,000 
2008 West Ouachita - School hnprovements 5,000,000 
2009 West Ouachita- School improvements 
(refinanced 1998 and 1999 bonds) 29,490,000 

Less defenred amount of refimding (644,048) (225,588) 
• Unamortized bond discount (334) (669) 

Limited tax certificates of indebtedness: 
2002 West Ouadiita - School unprovements 2,460,000 3;205,000 
2003 West Ouachita - School improvements 3.460,000 4.500.000 

Total ;B1 37.337.525 $^^.021.725 

The proceeds of $9,785 million of the 2009 Bast Ouachita Bond District general 
obligation bonds will be used to complete the construction of 2 middle schools and an 
agriculture/vocattonal center and to make renovations to the 10 schools in the district. 
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The proceeds ofthe West Ouachita Bond District 2009 revenue bonds of $5 million will 
be used to make classroom additions to a school and to make renovations to the other 
schools in the district. 

The School Boai'd refinanced the 1998 and 1999 West Ouachita Bond District revenme 
bonds at a savings to the district of over $1.3 million m interest payments over the life of 
the bonds. 

The state limits the amount of g^ieral obligation debt that school boards can issue to 35 
percmt ofthe assessed value of all taxable property within the school board's corporate 
limits. At June 30, 2009, East Ouachita Bond District's maximum legal debt limit was 
$73,896,626. The District's outstanding general obligation bonded debt of $63,325,000 
is below the maximum debt limit. 

The bond issues are rated as foltows: 

General Obligatton Bonds: 
East Ouachita Bond • 
East Ouachita Bond 
East Ouachita Bond • 
East Ouachita Bond 
East Ouachita Bond • 
East Ouachita Bond • 

Revenue Bonds: 
West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond • 
West Ouachita Bond 

- 2000 
- 2005 (Refinanced) 
- 2006 (Refinanced) 
- 2007 
- 2008 
- 2009 

- 1998 
- 1999 
- 2000 
- 2001 
- 2002 
- 2006 (Refinanced) 
- 2007 
- 2008 
- 2009 (Refinanced) 

Standard & Poor'; 
Rating Service 

AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-

AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-
AA-

Other long-term obligattons of the School Board include accrued vacation pay and sick 
leave and other post employment benefits. We present more detailed information about 
our long-term obligattons in Notes 1 .N. and 12 to the Basic Financial Statements. 
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COMMITTED 
f^AUStmhat»f For the Future 

The Ouachita Parish School Board is strong financially. Even though our net assets 
decreased by $19.2 million primarily as a result of recording a liability for Other Post 
Employment Benefits, we feel that we will be able to meet the flitui'e fmancial needs of 
the system The Legislature voted not to increase the 2009-10 MFP funding for the 2.75 
per cent growth factor included in the MFP fonnula. The Legislature dki not fiilly fund 
the MFP formula by approximately $130 million. The State was able to î eceive Federal 
stabilization funds to covei* the $130 million not funded by the Legislature. Even thougli 
the Legislature did not include the growth fiictor in the MFP funding, our 2009-10 MFP 
funding did increase by approximately $2 milHon as a result of an increase in students of 
375. Property values have been increasing by approxhnately 7 percent over the last few-
years. Ad valorem taxes in the General Fund will increase by 6 percent in 2009-10, 
based on data received from the tax assessor. Our Federal grants have been increasing 
some over the last 3 years. In 2008-09 our Federal grant rev«aue increased by $284,182. 
In 2009-10 we are anticipating that our Federal funds will increase over $10 million. The 
inca'ease is due to the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Funds (ARRA). 
Congress authorized in Febmary 2009 funding undm* the ARRA to stimulate the lagging 
U.S. economy and reverse its recessionary trend. These funds will be used to maintain 
jobs that we would have had to eliminate had we not received the funding and to provide 
additional instractton in the at-risk schoofe and to supplement the needs of special 
educatton students in the district. The ARRA funding is for a two year period. 

Of concern in 2009-10 aie the investment rates and our sales tax revenues. We are 
anticipating interest rates to stay low throughout the year. We are watching our sales tax 
revenues closely to see how they will be affected by the economy. During the first thre« 
months of 2009-10 sales tax collecttons have dropped by approximately 10 percent. We 
are anttoipating this trend to continue for the remamder for the year. With the closing of 
the General Motors, Delphi Interior and Lighting plant in January 2006 and State Fann in 
2005, community leaders have been seeking other businesses to replace General Motors 
and State Farm. Accent Marketing, a calling center, has recently moved in the State 
Farm building creating up to 550 new jobs. An automobile manufacturer has recently 
purchased the General Motors building to start production of a new type of automobile. 
Production is expected to start in 2011. The plant is expected to provide over 1400 jobs 
over the next two to three years. Our econon^ is currently lagging, but local economists 
feel that within the next year or so, the economy should pick up. 

We do not anticipate any large or unusual expenditures to occur in the 2009-10 fiscal 
year. At present, fuel cost, utilities, and health care costs are expected to only have 
minimal increases in 2009-10. Funding ofthe MFP in ftiture years is currently uncertain. 
We have started preparing for the future by reducing salaries and benefits in the General 
Fund by over $1 millton in 2009-10. Management is not aware of any large expenditures 
that will increase significantly in the foreseeable fiiture. 
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The General Fund's fund balance at June 30, 2009, was $16.8 million or 12.9 percent of 
2008-09 expenditures. The School Board would like to keep the fiind balance between 
10 percent and 15 percent of General Fund revenue. The Board has been reducing the 
fund balance the last two years to get it back within this range. Now that the General 
Fund balance is within the Board's recommended range, the Board plans to keep the fund 
balance within that range. 

The School Board has been constmcting new schools and remodeling existing schools iktx 
the last nine years from bond proceeds in the East Ouachita Bond Distrtot and the West 
Ouachita Bond District. As fiinds fit>m bond proceeds were depleted in the districts, each 
District has been selling additional bonds to continue the constmction and renovation 
projects. On December 2, 2009, the East Ouachita Bond District sold an additional $^.2 
million general obligation bonds at an interest rate of 4.04 percent. The bond proceeds 
will be used to complete the construction of two new schools and to complete renovations 
to the other schools in the District, 

In October 2009, the West Ouachita Bond District applied for and received $10 million in 
of Qualified School Constmctton Bonds (QSCBs). The taxable QSCBs revenue bonds 
will be repaid over 15 years at a 0.6 pei'cent interest rate. The proceeds fiom the bonds 
will be used for various renovatton and construction projects in the Bond District. 

As discussed previously, the Ouachita Parish School Board has been building and/or 
remodeling all of its sdiools during the last nine years. When this project is complete, we 
will have some ofthe best fecilities in the state to educate our children; thus, aiding in the 
reductton of overcrowding in our schools. We feel that a good learning environment is 
cmcial to helping students reach their educational potential. Overall, we feel that the 
future of Ouachita Parish School Board is good financially, as well as educationally. 

COMMITTED 

•^Sr^SS"* Contacting the School Board's Financial Management 

This financial r^ovt is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investor, and 
creditors with a general overview ofthe School Board's finances and to show the School 
Board's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions abont this report 
or need addittonal fmancial informatton contact Richie Gaaett, Business Manager of 
Ouachita Parish School Board, P.O. Box 1642, Monroe, LA 71210-1642 or call at (318) 
432-5000 or E-mail to garrettfolopsb.net. 
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Our Mission: 
Through collaboration 

among all stakeholders, the 
Ouachita Parish School System 

will ensure that all students attain 
the knowledge and skills needed 

to be productive citizens. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Assets 
Governmental ActMties 

June 30, 2009 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 
Investments (Not© 4) 
Receivables (Note 6): 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Federal grants 
Other 

Inventory (Note 1.H.) 
Bond issuance costs, net (Note 1.!.) 
Capital assets, net (Note 7): 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and equipment 
Construction In progress 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Salaries and wages payable 
Uneamed revenues 
Due to other govemments 
Interest payable - bonds 
Other nabDilles 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year (Note 12) 
Due in more than one year (Notes 9 and 12) 

Totai liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 
Debt service 
Salaries and related benefits 
Protested taxes 
Federal and local grant projects 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

$ 39,106,864 
58,796,362 

417,835 
6,154,700 
3,435,549 
1.814,691 

355,369 
826,360 

6,067,839 
171,427,046 
11,755,873 
8,755,292 

306,913,780 

464,459 
20,407,587 

285,248 
11,205 

1,860,809 
33,122 

8,069,197 
177,751,380 
208.883,007 

87,522,863 

11.150,469 
5,716,901 

250,313 
500,640 

(7,110,413) 
$ 98,030,773 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Ouachita Parish Sclioo) Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Statement of Activities 
Governmontal ActhflUes 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Functions/programs: 
InsloKtlonat services: 
Regular programs 
Spedal educsllon programs 
VocsilonBl programs 
Other instrucllonal pfograms 
Special progcams 
Adutt/conllnutng educaUen 

Support services: 
Pu;* support seMces 
instnxctionat staff support services 
General admirtstraljon 
School admWstraUon 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central ser\fces 

NonlnstrwctionaJ services: 
Food service oper^lons 
Commurtily service programs 

Long4erm obllgallorre: 
Interest on long-term obHgaHons 
Tochnteai services 
Legal services 

Tolal Govemmeitial ActMlles 

EXPENSES 

$ 02,839,540 
23.086.768 

1.999,442 
2.063,292 
5^50,986 

503,366 

8.661.819 
12.143.673 
1,332.393 

11.868.358 
3.255,800 

22.935,946 
11.103,627 
3.438.395 

12,069,841 
69,785 

6,475.676 
7.433 

15,679 
$ 220.940,010 

CHARGES FOR 
SERVICES 

$ 
-
-

160,063 

-
-
. 
-
-
• 

-
-
-
-

2.209.965 

-
. 
-
. 

S 2,370.028 

PROGRAM REVENl^S 
OPERATWQ 

GRANTS AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ 1,938,988 
2.847.691 

353,247 
848,154 

5.019,821 
449.729 

1,934,949 
4300.070 

56.845 
248.055 
778.408 
099,454 
474,787 
39,881 

5,744.063 
46,566 

. 

. 

. 
$ 26.576,588 

CAPITAL 
GRANTS AND 

CONTRtBUTiONS 

$ 43.544 

-
15,374 

-
4,123 

" 
_ 

2,690 

-
-
-
-
-
-
. 
-
_ 
-
-

S 65,731 

NET (EXPENSE) 
REVENUE AND 
CHAMGES m 
NETASSETS 

$ (9(0.857,328) 
(2^.139,177) 
C1.63D,821) 
C1.055,075) 

(927.042) 
(53.857) 

C6.046.670) 
£7,340.013) 
Cl ,275.548) 

(11,622,303) 
62,479.382) 

(211,036,492) 
(10.628340) 
fl3.39B314) 

<I4,11S313) 
(23.210) 

fi6,476,576) 
•P.4a3) 
(15.679) 

(191,027.672) 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem taxes levied fon 
General purposes 
D ^ service purposes 

Sales taxes levied for 
General purposes 
Sateiries and related beneflls 

Grants and conlributions not 
restricted to specUlc programs: 
Minimum Fourxfatlon Program 
Stale revenue sharing 

Interesl and Irtvestment earnings 
Other 

Total general revenues 
Changes In nel ass^s 
Nal a s s ^ at tj^Innlng of year 
Net assets at end of year 

113,354,282 
4,631,173 

-86,275,055 
21.421.340 

1112,173,653 
830,587 

1.892,643 
2,177,537 

172,767.170 
(10,170,502) 
1f7,2Q1.275 
98,030.773 

Sea accompan^ng notes to the basic financiai statements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe> Louisiana 

Fiscal Year En<3ed June 30,2009 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS) 
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Ouachita Pwlib School Board 
Monro*. LoalBlaiu 

OOVERNMEKTAL HJHDS 
BALANCE SHEET 

Junt30.ZOOd 

(Wim Cony vsKvB Totals For Junt 30,200^ 

A31»l« 
Cash end cub equtvalenU (MOM 3) 
fahe$bnentB(Not«4) 
Receivables (Moift 6); 
Advslaantoxes 
Sales sntf DBS tsxss 
FctfersI grants 
OUw 

Due from other ftmds (Mote 13) 
lrh«mo(y(Nota1^.> 
Prepaitt items 
Totslsssets 

LlBbllUcs artd fund balances 
UibnWes: 
Accounte payaWe 
SBlsrtas and vrsges payabfe 
Uneamed revenues 
Due lo other oavcnvn entt 
OUiwHaMfh-fts 
Due to oUier funds (Hole 13) 

Total Sabtliltn 

Fundb0lanc«*: 
Resefwd(NotBl4) 
DasIgnQled(^Ma14> 
Unreser\'QdA/ndeslgnated(HDtii 14) 

Total fund batoneee 
Total lisbiuacs and fimd b^ncex 

eeHERAL 
FUND 

$20,176,651 
8/83.956 

386,100 

. 
43,095 
34,0M 

4.126,463 

-
. 

. 5 3 ^ 2 S I A ™ , 

$ 224.249 
16.221,185 

-
11,205 
3v79I 

-
16,460,430 

1J03J03 
175.318 

15.318/119 
18,707.040 

^ ^ . ^ y " Q 

SPEOAL 
REVENUE 

FUKD-
DI5TRICT 

01 
SMESTAX 

$ 
14.062,789 

-1.005,378 

-
-
-
• 
-

$16,068,165 

$ 68.574 
335.096 

-
-
-

286^91. 
660.161 

14,406,004 

-
-

14,403.004 
*15,086,165 

DEBT 
SERVICE 
FUND-
WEST 

OUACHtTA 
BOND NO. 2 

$ 8.ieO;124 

-
-
-
-
. 
. 
-
-S 6.160.124 

J 

6,180.124 

-
-

6,160,124 
$ 6,180.124 

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS 

FUND-
EAST 

OUACHITA 2009 
CONSTRUCTION 

$ 

-L 

$ 

-L 

4.387.028 
16,785/460 

21.153.508 

9.006 

-
-
-
-
-

9.006 

21.144.602 

-
-

21.144.602 
it.^to.fio6 

OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL 

$ 

i_ 

S 

1 -

7.536,922 
14316.354 

20,735 
6,149.324 
3,392.454 
1,780,666 

-
355,369 

. 
ii!,860,844 

169,322 
3351,306 

285,248 

-
29331 

3.861,972 
8,187,179 

22.680k634 
2^)93331 

-
24373365 
32360344 

TOTAL 

2009 

$ 38^63.925 
63,949379 

417.635 
e,164J00 
3,435349 
t,M4391 
4,128.463 

35S^fi9 

. »ioa,6^W*^ 

$ 451.151 
20.407,697 

286.248 
11,205 
33.122 

4,128^63, 
25.316,776 

Gs.eie3B7 
2.268.349 

16^iV«. 
8S.203333 

$108,620,111 

200S 

$ 29.145.2!67 
60.161,514 

340,756 
6,1213KB 
2,5733ffO 
2.116.7*12 
3,2e83«l 

301,023 
8.574 

^^^fd?AO 

% 1.630,7T)2 
19.401,702 

2I3v371 
11.205 
11.S85 

3.286,891 
24,855.4156 

60.887,4197 
2311.999 

16321,288 
79.500,784 

5104.056,240 

S^eacoomffanfing notes to U}9 baste BrmKSat statementa 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds ' 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2009 

Total fund balances - govemmental funds $83,203,335 

The cost of capital assets (land, buildmgs, furniture and 
equipment) purchased or constructed is reported as aa 
expenditure in Govemmental Funds, The Statement of Net 
Assets includes those capital assets among the assets ofthe 
School Board as a whole. The cost of those capital assets is 
allocated over their estimated usefiil lives (as depreciation 
expense) to the various programs reported as 
Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities. 
Because depreciation expense does not affect financial 
resources, it is not reported in the Govemmental Funds. 

Cost of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

$309,833,811 
niL827.76n 195,006,050 

The costs associated with issuiag bonds are reported as 
expenditures in the Govermnental Funds. The issuance 
costs are not considered fmancial resources in the 
Statement of Net Assets; thereforê  the costs are rqported on 
the Statement of Net Assets as an asset net 
of accumulated amortization. 

Bond issuance cost 
Accumulated amortization 

1,791,457 
(965.097^ 826,360 

Elimination of interfund assets and liabilities. 
Interfimd assets 
Interfund Habilities 

(4,128,463) 
4.128,463 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe^ Louisiana 

Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds* 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets (continued) 

June 30,2009 

Long term liabilities applicable to the School 
Board's govemmental activities are not due and 
payable in the current period and accordingly are 
not reported as fund liabilities, AU liabilities - both 
cmT^t and long term - are reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets. 
Retainages due in the 2009-10 fiscal year on 
construction projects are not reported in the 
Govemmental Funds. Retainages have been 
reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets. 
Post-employment benefits in the Governmental Funds 
are recorded as an expenditm*e when paid. The 
unfunded annual required contnbutbn in the 
Statement ofNet Assets is recognized as a liability as 
it accrues. 

Balances at June 30, 2009 are: 
Long-term liabilities: 

Compensated abs^ces payable 
General obligation bonds payable 
Deferred amount on refunding - GO bonds 
Revenue bonds payable 
Deferred amount on refunding - Rev. bonds 
Bond discount on re&r^ing - Rev. bonds 
Tax liability certificates of indebtedness 
Bond premium 
Retainages payable 
Other post employment benefits 

($6,630,486) 
(63,325,000) 

83,093 
(68,820,000) 

644,048 
334 

(5,920,000) 
(113,822) 
(315,083) 

(40,^97.237) ($184,994,153) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
(continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds* 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets (continued) 

June 30,2009 

The School Board self-insures for genial liability 
and workers* compensation. Funds to meet these 
liabilities are deposited in an Intemal Service Fund. 
The Intemal Service Fxmd is not reported with the 
Govemmental Funds. The Intemal Service Fund is 
reported in the Statement ofNet Assets. The 
Intemal Service Fund's net assets at June 30,2009, 
are as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents $842,939 
Investments 2,846,783 
Accounts receivable (13,308) 
Claims liability (826,424) $2,849,990 

Interest on outstanding bonds in the Governmental 
Funds is recorded as an expenditure when paid. 
Bond interest in the Statement ofNet Assets is 
recognized as an expense as it accrues. 

Accrued interest on outstanding bonds 
(1,860,809) 

NetAssets $98.030.773 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (concluded) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds' 
Statement of RevenueSj Expenditiu-es, and Changes in 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Total net change in fund balances - Governmental 
Funds $3,702,551 

Amounts reported fcr govemmental activities in the 
Statement of Activities are different because: 

Elimination of transfers in and oxA: 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

$11,939,994 
(12.539,994) (600,000) 

Capital outlays are rejjorted in Govemmental Funds as 
expenditures. Howeverj in the Stat^nent of Activities, 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlays exceed depreciation in the period; 

Capital Outlays 
Depreciation 
Increase in retainage payable 

15,071,M8 
(8,267,539) 

(73,742) 6,730,567 

Capital Assets nor depreciation are reported in the 
Govermnental Funds. Capital assets and accumulated 
depreciatbn are reported in the Statement ofNet Assets. 
When an asset is disposed of that is not fully depreciated 
it results in a loss on the disposal ofthe asset in the Statement 
of Activities unless sales proceeds are received which are 
in excess of carrying value. During the current fiscal year 
the School Board had a foss on disposal of capital assets 
of$42,304. (42,304) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds' 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the 
Govemm^tal Funds, but the repaym«it reduces bng-term 
liabilities in the Statement ofNet Assets. $6,335,000 

The costs associated with issuing bonds are i-eported as 
expenditures in the Govemmental Funds. The issuance 
costs do not require the use of current finandal resources; 
therefore, the costs are amortized over the life ofthe bond 
issue in the Statement ofNet Activities. For the year ended 
June 30, 2009, bond issuance costs exceeded current year 
amortization of bond issuance costs as follows: 

Bond issuance costs $446,114 
Current year amortization of bond issuance costs (218.391) " 227,723 

The School Board self-insures for general liability 
and workers' compensation Funds to me^ these 
liabilities are deposited in an Internal Service Fund. 
The Intemal SCTvice Fund is not reported with the 
Govemmental Funds; however, it is reported in the 
Statement ofNet Assets. The net assets in the 
Intemal Service Fund increased from $2,620,256 
at June 30,2008 to $2,849,990 at June 30,2009 for 
a net increase of $229,734 229,734 
Elimination of transfer in from general fond to Intemal Service 
Fund 600,000 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds* 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses-
compensated absences (vacations and sick leave) - are 
measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In the 
Govemmental Funds; howevo*, expenditures for these 
items are measured by the amount of financial resources 
used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). This year, 
vacation and sick time eamed ($729,683) exceeded the 
amount used ($322,709) by $406,974. ^J^Q^ ^^^S 

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities 
differs from the amount reported in the Governmental Funds 
because acarued interest received from bond sales is recognized 
as Other Financing Souix̂ es when received and interest on 
outstanding bonds is recognized as an expenditure in the 
Governmental Funds when it is due, which requires the 
use of current financial resources. In the Statement of 
Activities; however, interest expenses are recognized as 
the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. Interest 
expense payable at year end decreased from the previous 
year as follows: 
Interest expense payable at June 30,2009 ($1,860,809) 
Interest expense payable at June 30,200S L946.406 85.597 

Bond premium from bond sales is reported in 
the Govemmental Funds as Other Financing Sources when 
received. Bond premium is reported in the Govemment-wide 
Financial Statements as a liability and amortized over the 
life ofthe bonds. 

(108,130) 
Bond premium 18.283 (89,847) 
Current year amortization expense 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the (governmental Funds' 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Ciianges in 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Proceeds from refimding debt are included in the Govemmental 
Funds as Other Financing Sources. Refunding debt proceeds are 
reported on ths Statement of Activities but are reported as long-
tenn liabilities on the Statement of N^ Assets. Proceeds from 
debt refinancing during 2008-09 were $29,490,000. (29,490,000) 

Payments to an escrow agent to re&nd bonded debt are 
reported in the Govemmental Funds as Other Financing 
Soutx;es. The amount paid to the escrow agent for principal 
is removed fi'om the long-tenn bonded debt in the Statement 
ofNet Assets. The deferred pait ofthe payment paid to the 
escrow agent is shown as a reduction of long-term debt in the 
Statement ofNet Assets. The deferred amount is amortized 
over the lesser ofthe life ofthe original bonds or the hfo ofthe 
refimding bonds. 

Payment of refiinded debt to escrow agent 28,460,000 
Payment of deferred amount to escrow agent 569,200 
Cunrent year amortization (376,339) 28,652,861 

Discounts received on refinancing bonds are reported in the 
Govemmental Funds as Oth^ Financing Sources. Bond 
discounts are reported on the Statement ofNet Assets as a 
reduction of long-term debt and amortized over the lesser 
ofthe life ofthe original bonds or the Ufe ofthe refiinding 
bonds. Current year amortizatbn of bond discount was $28,661. (28 661) 

Other post-en^loyment benefits are reported in the 
Govemmental Funds as expenditures when paid. The unfunded 
annual contnbutbn is reported in the Statement of Activities 
as it accrues. (20,291,749) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds* 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

General obligation and revenue bonds issued in 2009 
are included in the Governmental Funds as Other Financing 
Sources. Bond issues are not reported on the Statement of 
Activities but aî e reported as long-term liabilities on the 
Statement ofNet Assets. 

Genei-al obligation bonds issued by East Ouachita 
Bond District ($9,785,000) 

Revenue bonds issued by West Ouachita Bond District (5,000,000) ($14.785,000) 

Change in net assets of govemmental activities ($19.170.5Q2'> 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund 
Comparative Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2009 and 2008 

Total 
2009 2008 

Assets: 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 842,939 $ 2,570,935 
Investments (Note 4) 2,846,783 1,321,983 
Accounts receivable - 32,369 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Claims liability - due within one year (Note 1 .R.) 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Claims iiability (Note I.R.) 

Total liabilities 

Unrestricted net assets 

3,689.722 

13,308 
450,000 

376,424 
839.732 

$ 2,849,990 

3.925,287 

-
326.258 

978,773 
1,305.031 

$ 2.620,256 

See accon)panyir)g notes to ttie basic financial statements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

and Changes in Net Assets 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

Total 

Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Self-insurance claims and 
insurance premiums 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues 
Earnings on investments 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers in 

Change In net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 
Net assets at end of year 

2009 

460,827 

90,561 

(370,266) 

600.000 

229.734 

2,620,258 

2008 

1.349.309 

(460,827) (1,349,309) 

115.274 

(1.234,036) 

830,900 

(403.135) 

3.023.391 
$ 2,849,990 $ 2,620.256 

See accompanying notes to ttie basic finandal statements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund - internal Service Fund 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008 

Cash flows from (used by) operating activities: 
Claims and premiums paid 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Transfer from Genera! Fund 

Cash flows from (used by) investing activities: 
Sale (purchase) of investments, net 
Eamings on Investments 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 
cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Changes In assets and iiabililies: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
Increase (decrease) in payables 
Increase (decrease) in claims liability 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Noncash Investing activities: 
increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 

See accompanying notes to the basic financfal statements. 
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Total 
2009 

$ (895,9^) 
(895,929) 

600,000 

(1,522,628) 
90,561 

(1,432,067) 

(1,727,996) 

2,570,935 
$ 842,939 

2008 

$ (940.893) 
(940.893) 

830,900 

1,870,312 
115.274 

1.985,586 

1.875.593 

695.342 
$ 2.570.935 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(460,827) 

30,197 
13,308 

(478.607) 

(895,929) 

(10,534) 

$(1,349,309) 

(27.506) 
(700) 

436.622 

$ (940.893) 

$ 2,173 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiduciary Fund- Agency Funds 
Comparative Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

June 30,2009 and 2008 

Total 
2009 2008 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,392,499 $3,461,296 

Liabilities: 
Amounts held for others $3,392,499 $3,461,296 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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0 

Our Mission: 
Through collaboration 

among all stakeholders, the 
Ouachita Parish School System 

will ensure that all students attain 
the knowledge and skills needed 

to be productive citizens. 
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Ouacbita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

INDEX 

NOTE 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 49 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 49 
B. Fund Accounting 49 

Govemmental Funds 50 
Major Funds 50 
Nonmajor Funds 51 
Proprietary Fund 51 
Fiduciary Fund.... 51 

C. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 51 
Govemment-wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 51 
Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 52 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 53 
E. Investments 54 
F. Short-Tram Inter&nd Receivables/Payables 54 
G. Elimination and Reclassification 55 
H. Inventory and Prepaid Items 55 
I. Bond Issuance Costs 55 
J. Capital Assets 56 
K- Uneamed Revenues , 56 
L Interfund Activity .57 
M. Compensated Absences 57 
N. Long-Term Liabilities 58 
O. Restricted 'Net Assets 58 
P. Reserves and Designations of Fund Financial Statements 59 
Q. Sales and Use Tax 59 
R. Self-Insurance 60 
S. Use of Estimates 61 

NOTE 2 - Expenditures - Budget and Actual 62 
NOTE 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 62 
NOTE 4-Investments 63 
NOTE 5 - Ad Valorem Taxes 65 
NOTE 6-Receivables 66 
NOTE 7-Capital Assets 67 

(continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

INDEX (continued) 

NOTE 8-Retirement Systems 69 
A. Teachers* Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) 69 
B. Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) 70 

NOTE 9-Other Post Employment Benefits : 71 
NOTE 10-Deferred Compensation Plan 81 
NOTE 11 - Agency Fund Deposits Due Others (FFS level only) 81 
NOTE 12-General Long-Term Obligations 82 
NOTE 13-Int^fund Assets/Liabilities (FFS level only) 87 
NOTE 14-Reserves and Designations ofFund Balances (FFS level only) 88 
NOTE 15 - Litigation and Contingencies 90 
NOTE 16-Inter&nd Transfers (FFS level only) 91 
NOTE 17-Subsequent Events 93 

(concluded) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30,2009 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Boaid (School Board) 
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as 
applied to govemmental \mits. The Governmental Accounting Standards Boaid (GASB) is the 
accepted standard setting body for estabhshing govermnental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

GASB Statement No. 14 established criteria for detomining the govemmental reporting entity 
and con^onent units that should be included within the reporting entity. Because the School 
Board has a separately elected goveming body and is legally separate and fiscally independent, 
the School Board is a separate govemmental reporting entity. For financial reporting purposes, 
the School Board's financial statements include all fiinds, schools, agencies and committees fbr 
which the School Board is financially accountable. The Sdiool Board is not aware of any other 
entities that should be included within the financial statements. 

Certain units of local govemment, such as other independently elected officials, the parish police 
jury and municipalities, are excluded fi'om the accompanying financial statements. These units 
have their own elected goveming authorities and are not financially accoimtable to the School 
Board. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The financial transactions ofthe School Board are recorded in individual fimds, each ofwhich is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that include its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues 
and expenditures, or expenses as appropriate. Fund accounting segregates fimds according to 
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with fanance 
related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent 
with legal and managerial requirements. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

L Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The School Board xises the following fiand categories and fund types. 

Governmental Funds: Govemmental funds account for the School Board's general 
government activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally 
restricted monies, the acquisition or construction of capital assets, and the servicing of 
general long-term debt. Govemmental fijnds are divided into major and nonmajox fimds, 
Mgjor fiinds ai'e fiinds that meet certain dollar tests of their assets, liabilities, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. Major funds are larger, more signifiicant fiinds. Nonmajor fiinds 
are the Governmental Funds that do not meet the dollar tests for major fiinds. The major 
and nonmajor fiinds are desoribed befow: 

Major Funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fimd ofthe School Board. It 
accounts for all fmancial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
flind and is always a major ^nd. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources (other than special assessments) that are legally restricted to expenditures 
for specified purposes. The District #1 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund is the only major 
Special Revenue Fund. For a more detailed description ofthe major Special Revenue Fund 
see the Requii-ed Sxipplemental Information - Pait B, Budg^ary Comparison Schedule, 

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for and 
the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The West 
Ouachita Bond No. 2 Fund is the only major Debt Seivice Fund For a more detailed 
description ofthe Debt Service Funds, see die Required Supplemental Information - Part 
B, Debt Service Fund. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources received 
and used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital fecilities not reported 
in the other Govemmental Funds. The East Ouachita 2009 Construction Capital Projects 
Fund is the only major Capital Projects Fund. For a more detailed description of this fiind 
see the Required Supplemental Informatbn ~ Part B, Capital Projects Funds. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Nonmajor Funds: 

The School Board has 10 nonmajor Special Revenue Funds, 2 nonmajor Debt Service 
Funds, and 3 nonmajor Capital Projects Funds. For a description of these fiinds see the 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds, Debt Seivice Funds, and Capital Projects Funds tab 
sections ofthe report. 

Proprietary Funds: 

IntejTial Service Fund - The Intemal Service Fund accounts for the financing of services 
provided by one fund to other fiinds of the School Board. The Self-Insurance Intemal 
Service Fund, which putx;hases an insurance policy and accounts for third-party 
administrative costs and claims, is reported as an intemal service fiind. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

Agency Fimds - The Agency Funds account for assets held by the School Board in a trustee 
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private or school organizations, other govemmental 
units and/or other fiinds. The School Activity Funds and Migrant Funds of other parishes 
are reported as Agency Funds. 

C. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus 

Government-wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The Statenient of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the 
reporting govermnent as a whofe. Fiduciary fiinds are not included in the GWFS. Fiduciary funds 

I are reported only in the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities at the fijnd financial 
! statement level. 

Tile Statement ofNet Assets and the Statement of Activities were prep&red using the economic 
resom'ces measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets and liabilities rraulting fiom exchange and exchange-like ti-ansactions are recognized 
when the exchange takes place. Non-exchange transactions are recognized when the School Board 

i has an enforceable legal claim to the revenues, expenses, gains, bsses, assets and liabilities. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Program revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly fix)m the program 
itself or fi-om parties outside the Scliool Board*s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program 
revenues reduce the cost of the fiinction to be financed fi-om the School Board's general 
revenues. 

General Revenues 

General revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly firom local prop-erty and 
sales taxes and fi-om unrestricted state grants. General revenues finance the remaining balance 
of a fiinction not covered by program revenues. 

Allocation of indirect expenses 

The School Board reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a fimction. Indirect expenses of othei* 
fimctions are not allocated to those fimctions but are reported separately in the Statement of 
Activities. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by fiinction and is included m the 
diiect expense of each fiinction. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect 
expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

Governmental Funds 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fimd is determined by its 
measurement focus. All governmental fimds reported in the fiind financial statwnents are 
accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measiurement 
focus, only current assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheet. Operating 
statements of these fiinds present ina-eases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and 
decreases (Le., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

The Proprietary Fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With 
this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this iiind are 
included on the balance sheet. The Proprietary Fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues aie recognized when eamed and expenses are i-ecognized when 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

incurred. Operating revenues are charges to the General Fund for insurance related costs such as 
claims liability and insurance premiums. Non-operating revenues are revenues that are not derived 
fi-om charges to the General Fund such as earnings on investments. Proprietary Fund Type 
operating statements present incareeses (e.g., revenues) and deci-eases (e.g., expenses) in fo>tal net 
assets. Operating expenses are general liability and worker's comp^isation claims and worker's 
condensation insurance premiums. 

Govemmental fiinds reported in the fand financial statements are accounted for on the wfod'died 
accrual basis of accounting. Governmental fund revenues are recognized in the accounting period 
in which they become susceptible to accrual— t̂hat is, when they become both measurable and 
available to pay cwxent period liabilities. Measurable means the amount ofthe transaction can be 
determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay Habilities ofthe current period. The School Board considers all revenues available if tliey are 
collected within 60 days afi:er the fiscal year end. Such revenue items are ad valorem, sales and 
use taxes and federal and state entitlements. Ad valorem taxes are considered measurable and are 
recognized in the calendar year ofthe tax levy. Sales and use taxes are considered measurable and 
available whrai collected by the vendors. Revenue firom state and federal grants are recorded when 
the reimbursable expenditures have been incurred. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fimd liability is incurred. Principal and inteirest on 
general bng-term debt are recorded as fiind liabilities when due or when amounts have been 
accumulated in the Debt Service Funds for payments to be made early ia the following year. Other 
post employment benefits (OPEB) are recorded in the Govemment-wide Financial Statements as 
an expenditure and as a liability when incurred. 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in interest-bearing demand deposits, bank certificates 
of deposit, as well as shoii-term mvestments with a maturity date withia three months ofthe date 
acquired. Bank ceitificates of deposit are stated at cost, which approximates feir value. Shart-term 
investments are stated at cost, which approximates feir value. 

Cash balances of all ofthe School Boaid^s funds, except for the Payroll Account, are pooled into 
one master bank account with the School Board's fiscal agent bank. The Payroll Account is 
maintained in a separate account. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounfing Policies (continued) 

Interest eamed on balances maintained in the pooled bank account was distributed to the individual 
fimds based on the cash balance maintained by the unrestricted participating fiind during the year. 

The School Board maintains separate *1>ook" cash accounts for each fund that is pooled within the 
master bank account. Negative book cash balances appeal- in the financial statements as a liability, 
'Thie to Other Funds." The balance of these amounts will be paid primarily through collectBons of 
grants receivable reimbursements fit)m the Federal and State Departments of Education. 

E. Investments 

Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S. 33:2955) and the Board's investment policy govern the 
investment policies ofthe School Board. The Ouachita Parish School Board is authorized to invest 
in U. S. Ti*easury obligations, U.S. Govemment instrumentalities, A-1, P-1 commercial paper, and 
other allowable short-term obligations including repurchase agreements. These are classified as 
investments if they have a maturity date of 90 days or more fixsm the date of acquisition, 
Investments are carried at feir value. 

Cash management and investment activities shall be conducted in a manner consistent with the 
"prudent investof* mle which states, ^Investments shall be made with judgment and care: under 
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretk>n and intelligence exercise in 
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation but for investment considering the 
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.** 

F. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for 
services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due firom other funds or due to 
other fimds on the fiind financial statements balance sheet. 
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1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

G. Elimination and Reclassifications 

In the process of aggregating data for the Statement ofNet Assets and the Statement of Activities, 
some amounts reported as interfiind activity and balances in the fiinds were eliminated or 
reclassified. Interfiind receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" 
effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column. Interfund services 
provided and used by tbe various Govemmental Funds have not been eliminated in the process of 
aggregating data. 

H. Inventory and Prepaid Items 

Inventory is accounted for using the consumption method, where expenditures are recognized as 
inventory when used. Inventory is stated at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. Inventory 
consists primarily of comirwdities and purchased food held for consumption. Purchased food 
inventory in the governmental fiinds is equally ofifeet by a fimd balance reserve which shows that 
this inventory does not constitute "available spendable resources" even though it is a component of 
total assets. Commodities inventory of $245,071 is reported as uneamed revenues, leaving a 
reserved fiind balance of $110,298 for purchased food. 

I. Bond Issuance Costs 

Costs (bond rating fees, attomey fees, printing, etc.) associated with issuing bonds are capitalized 
and amortized over the life of tihe bond issue in the Govmim«it-wide Financiai Statemeats. The 
bond issuance costs are reported as expenditures in the Fund Financial Statements. The fbitlDwing 
is a summary of govCTnmental activities bond issuance cost transactions for the year ended June 
30,2009: 

Bond Issuance Accumulated 
Costs Amortization 

Balance June 30,2008 $1,345,343 $746,706 
Additfons 446,114 218.391 
Balance June 30,2009 $1.791.457 $965.097 
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

J. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and in^rovements, fiirnitwe and equipment, and 
constmction in progress are reported as govermnental funds in the Governmental-wide Financial 
Statements. The School Board considers assets with an initial individual cost of nwre thaa $5,000 
and an estimated useful life of 2 years or more as a capital asset. In the 2008-09 fiscal year the 
School Board followed the Louisiana Department of Education's recommendation to increase the 
capitaHzation value of capital assets firom $1,000 to $5,000. See Note 7 for more details of the 
change in capitalization value. 

Capital assets are recoided at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful fives. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Estimated usefiil life is management's best estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet 
service demands. Capital assets have not been assigned a salvage value because management feels 
that the salvage value is immaterial. Straight-Hne depreciation is used based on the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 40 years 
Fumiture and equipment 5-15 years 

Public domain (infi-astructure) capital assets (ag. pai'king tots, sidewalks, and other assets that are 
immovable and of value only to the govemment) were capitalized as part ofthe constmction cost 
ofthe buildings. 

K. Unearned Revenues 

The School Board reports uneamed revenues on its Statement of Net Assets and on the Fund 
Financial Statements* balance sheet. Uneamed revenues arise when tlie School Board receives 
resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the 
occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the School Board has a legal 
claim to the resources, the liability for uneamed revenue is removed firom the Govemmental 
Fund*s Fund Financial Statements' balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 
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L. Interfund Activity 

Interfimd activity is reported as loans, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidatbn. Reimbursements are when one fimd incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfiind transactions 
are treated as transfers. Ti-ansfers between govermnental or propriety fiinds are netted as; part of 
the reconciliation to the Gov^nment-wide Financial Statements. 

M. Compensated Absences 

All 12-month employees eam firom 10 to 15 days of annual leave each year dependhig on length of 
service with the School Board. Annual leave is credited at the beginning of each fiscal year and a 
maximum of five days can be accumulated and cairled forward into a new fiscal year. Upon 
termination of employment, unused annual leave up to 20 days is paid to ^nployees at the 
employees* current rates of pay. 

AU school employees earn ten days of sick leave each year. Sick leave inay be accumulated 
without limitatrons. Upon retirement, unused accumulated sick leave of up to 25 days is paid to 
employees at the employees* current rates of pay. The accrual recorded for eamed sick leave is 
based on a 25-day maximum per employee. Sick leave is not payable upon discharge or 
termination. Upon retirement, accumulated side leave is used in the retirement benefit computation 
as eamed service. 

Sick and vacation leave are reported in the Statement ofNet Assets as a bng-term liability and 
expensed in the Statement of Activities. Sick and vacation leave accmed in the Statement ofNet 
Assets as ofthe end ofthe fiscal year are valued using employees* current rates of pay. Neither 
the Sdiool Board nor the employees are required to contribute to the rethreanent system for sick 
and annual leave payments. Accmed sick and vacation leave will be paid from fixture years' 
resources. No allowance is made for the immaterial amounts of sick leave forfeited when 
empfoyees resign or retire. A liability for sick and annual leave is reported in the Govemmental 
Funds only if they ai'e payable at year end as the result of an employee's retircmait. 
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N. Long-Term LiabiUties 

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the fiind financial 
statements in the period the bonds are issued. Bond proceeds arc reported as an Other Financing 
Source. Issuance costs, even if withheld fh)m the actual net proceeds received, are reported as 
debt service expenditures. 

In the Govemment-wide Financial Statements bond premiums and issuance costs are reported on 
the balance sheet net of amortization and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bond discounts 
have been reported in the Govemment-wMe Financial Statements as a reductbn of long-term 
liabilities, net of accumulated amortization. Bond proceeds have been reported in the Government-
wide Financial Statements as a tong-term liability. 

The cmtent cost of other post-employment benefits is recognized in the fimd financial statements 
in the year earned. Other post-wnployment benefits eamed prior to the implementatton of GASB 
45 in fiscal year 2008 are to be recognized 3% per year for the years 2008 - 2037. 

O. Restricted Net Assets 

For the Govemment-wide Statement of Net Assets, net assets are rqwrted as restricted when 
constraints placed on net asset use are either: 

Extemally imposed by creditoi-s (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other govemments; 

Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

In the Statement ofNet Assets the foUowing items are consklered restricted: 

Debt service is considered restricted because an ad valorem tax has been levied specifically 
to meet the principal and interest payments of various bond issues. 
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Salaries and related benefits are considered restricted as it represents undistributed salaries 
and related benefits firom sales taxes restricted by sales tax propositions exclusively for this 
purpose. 

Protested taxes are considered restricted because the taxpayer has filed suit protesting the 
ad valorem tax assessment and the amount of the tax. Distribution of the tax is pending 
settlement ofthe suit. 

Federal and local grant projects are considered restricted because the use of grant fimds 
have been designated by the benefactor or grantor. 

P. Reserves and Designations of Fund Financial Statements 

Portions of fimd equity reported in the Fund Financial Statements are reserved for future use and 
are, therefore, not available for fiiture appropriation or expenditure. Designattons of unreseirved 
flind balances indicate the School Board's tentative plans for the use of financial resources in a 
future perbd. See Note 14 for more detaU of fund balance reserves and designations. 

Q. Sales and Use Tax 

The voters of Ouachita Parish have authorized the collection of four sales and use taxes for the 
benefit ofthe School Board. The first of these is a .5% sales and use tax levied and collected 
jointly by the City of Monroe School Board and the Ouachita Parish School Board. The net 
proceeds ofthe tax are to be aUocated and prorated between the two school boards annuaUy on the 
basis of average daily membership for the preceding school year. The tax revenue is to be used 
exclusively to supplement other revalues available to the School Board for the following purposes: 

Eighty-eight percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used for the 
payment of the salaries of teachers, as defined by the Louisiana State Department of 
Educatton. 

Twelve percent ofthe revenues received by the School Board are to be used for the 
payment of salaries to designated personnel, other than teachers. 

The second of these taxes is an additional 1% sales and use tax levied and collected by the School 
Board only, and is to be used exclusively to supplement other revenue available to the School 
Board for the purpose of teacher and School Board employees' salai'ies and benefits. 
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The third of these taxes is an additional .5% sales and use tax levied and coUected by the School 
Board only. The tax revenue is to be used exclusively to supplement other revenues available to 
the School Board for the following purposes: 

Thirty-eight percent ofthe revenues received by the School Board are to be used for 
capital improvements and facility and equipment support. 

Thirty-six percent ofthe revenues received by the School Board are to be used for 
classroom instruction. 

Fourteen percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used for , 
the payment of mandated costs. 

Twelve percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used to 
restore salary reductions. 

The fourth of these is an addittonal 1 % sales and use tax levied and collected by the West Ouachita 
Parish School Bond District for a pertod of 27 years through the year 2025. The tax proceeds are 
to be used for constructing, acquirbg, hnproving, equipping, fiimishing, maintaining, and/or 
operating schools and school related fecilities in the district, with the proceeds of the tax being 
subject to fimding into bonds for capital improvements. 

R. Self-Insurance 

The School Board is exposed to risks fix)m damage to property fi-om natui-al disasters and 
fires and for en*ors and omissions. The School Board is covered through kisurance policies: 
for these risks. The School Board is also at risk from iiyui'ies to students, employees, and 
citizens incurred on our fecilities through ne^gence and to en:̂ >loyees being injured on the 
job. The School Board is partially self-insured for workers* compensatton and general 
liability insurance coverage, and maintains policies with large deductibles for property and 
fleet vehicle insurance. The School Board has an excess insurance policy which covers 
individual workers* compensation claims and occurreaices in excess of $400,000. The 
School Board self-insures for the retention. The School Boaid has not had claims to exceed 
its insurance coverage for each ofthe past three fiscal years. 

60 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (continued) 

Revenues that finance the operations ofthe Self-Insurance Intemal Service Fund are considered 
operating revenues and include charges for services and insurance proceeds firom tosses. Revenues 
that are not derived directly from the operations ofthe self-insurance program are considered non-
operating revenues and include earnings on investments. The School Board has increased the net 
assets in the Int^nal Service Fund over the years by transfers fix)m the General Fund to cover 
future catastrophic losses. 

Expenses related to these plans are recognized in tiie self-insurance fund as claims are incurred. A 
liability for unpaid and incurred but not reported claims is based on the School Board's known 
claims and its prevtous experience, A third-party administrator, who processes and investigates 
claims, pays valid claims and estimates the liabil^es for unpaid claims, manages the workers* 
compensation and general liabihty plans. School Board personnel rmxmge the remaining plans. 

During fiscal year 2009, total expenses for claims and insurance premiums related to the self-
insurance plans were $460,827. The School Board's activity in claims liability for fiscal years 
2009 and 2008 was: 

2009 20O8 

Clahns liabUity at beginning of tiie year $1,305,031 $868,409 
Incurred claims and provision for incurred but not reported (1) 402,247 1,688,070 
Clahns payments (1) (880,854) (1,251,448) 
Claims Hability at the end ofthe year $826,424 $1,305,031 
Claims liability due within one year $450,000 $326,258 

(1) In 2008-09 two large claims were settled and 13 smaUer claims were settled or ctosed resulting 
in the claims liability being reduced by $456,915, thus reducing current year expendttures. 

S. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with g^erally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assuntpttons that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe 
fmancial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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2, Expenditures-Budget and Actual 

The foUowing individual nonmajor special revenue and debt seivice funds had actual expenditures 
over total budgeted expenditures for the year ended June 30,2009. 

Fund 
Nonmajor Special Revenue 

Funds: 
Supplemental Salaries Sales 
Tax-.5% 

West Ouachita Sales Tax 
School Food Service 

Major Debt Service Funds: 
West Ouachita Bond No.2 

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds: 
East Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 

Budget 

$8,799,578 
68,800 

9,338,820 

37,405,685 

4,619,575 
328,000 

Actual 

$8,980,001 
185,040 

9,450,893 

37,377,057 

4,640,074 
342,386 

Variance 
With 
Final 

Budget 

($180,423) 
(116,240) 
(112,073) 

(28,628) 

(20,499) 
(14,386) 

The fimd balance in the Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - .5% Fund is distributed to the 
employees at year end. The revenue exceeded budget amounts, thus resulting m more salaries 
being distributed at year end than anticipated. West Ouachita Sales Tax Fund's expenditures 
exceeded budgeted expenditures due to the Board authorizmg more school repairs than originally 
anticipated. The excess of expenditures over budgeted expmditures in the School Food Service 
Fund was the result of underestimating food and utUity costs. East Ouachita Bond actual 
expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures due to underestimating fiscal agent administrative 
cost. West Ouachita Bond expenditures were more than anticipated due to underestimating the 
amount of repair projects that would be completed by year end 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Custodial credit risk-deposits. At yeai-end, as reported on the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Agency Funds' Comparative Statement of Assets and Liabilities, the book balances ofthe School 
Board's deposits (including bank certificates of deposit) were $39,106,864 and $3,392,499, 
respectively The School Board had bank balances totaling $49,515,533 at June 30, 2009 ofwhich 
$2,233,605 were covered by federal depositoiy insurance and $47,281,928 were covered by 
collateral held by the trust department of agents ofthe pledging financial institutions in the School 
Board's name. Securities that may be pledged as collateral are obligations ofthe United States 
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Govemment and its agencies, and obligations ofthe State of Louisiana and its municipalities and 
school districts. Even though the pledged securities are considered uncoUateralized (Category 3) 
undar the provistons of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of 
being notified by the district that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited fiinds upon deirrand. 

Individual fiinds with significant book cash deficit balances at June 30,2009 were as foUows: 

Fund Cash Deficit 
Major Funds: 

Special Revenue Funds: 
District #1 Sales Tax $266,491 

Nonmajor Funds: 
Special Revenue Funds: 
Title I Programs 945,479 
Special Education IDEA-B 732,543 
Other Federal Programs 671,767 
State Grants 547,495 

Debt Seivice Fund: 
West Ouachita Bond 6,323 

Capital Projects Fund: 
West Ouachita 2007 Construction 769.264 

Total 

4. Investments 

Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955 and the School Board's investment 
pohcy. The Board's investment poUcy allows funds which are available for investment and above 
immediate cash requirements to be invested in accordance with the following: a.) first priority 
shaU be to secure safety of principle, b.) the second priority shall be to ensure liquidity of ftinds to 
meet the obhgations of the School Board, and c.) the third priority slmU he the yield of 
investments. The School Board's investments of $56,796,362 at June 30, 2009, consist of tiie 
foltowing and are carried at feir value: 
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4, Investments (conthiued) 

Investment Type 

U. S. Govemm^it Instmmentalities: 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporatton 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal National Mortgage Association 

Investment Pools: 

Reliant Investments, L.L.C. 

Argent Tmst 

Merrill Lynch 

Total 

Fair Value 

$8,852,562 

9,706,891 

6,686,412 

16,786,480 ' 

8,483,957 

6.280.060 

%of 
Total 

15.6% 

17.1% 

11.8% 

29.6% 

14.9% 

11,0% 

Credit 
Risk 

AAA 

AAA 

AAA 

AAA 

AAA 

AAA 

100.00% 

Credit risk. All ofthe School Board's investments, as shown in the previous table, are mvested 
accoiding to the investment policy adopted by the School Board, In accordance with School 
Board policy and Louisiana Revised Statute, Title 33, Chapter 6, Part IV, Sectton 2955, the School 
Board's credit risk is extremely tow. This statute and the School Board's policy lunit the School 
Board's investments to U.S. Govemment instmmentalities, investment grade (A-1, P-1) 
commercial paper of domestic United States corporattons, and other aUowable short-tenn 
obligations including repurchase agreements. 

Concentration of credit tisk Applicable state statutes do not place Umits on credit concentratioa 
The School Board's investment policy Umits the amoimt that may be held by any one issuer to no 
more than twenty five percent ofthe total portfolio to dea-ease the possibility of credit risk. 

Interest rate risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the School Board manages its 
exposure to declines in fair values by using the weighted average maturity method. This method 
takes into account the timing of maturities and the amounts that are required to mature on specific 
dates to meet liquidity needs. Of the amount invested in U. S, Government instramentalities, 
$25,245,865 matures in less than tweh/e mondis. The remaining $31,550,497 ofthe total 
portfolto is held in investment pools. These investments are bond proceeds held for the purpose of 
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constmction. The maturity dates are thirty-six months or less and follow the constmction draw 
down schedules for those specific funds. A laddering strategy which spreads maturity dates- is used 
to meet liquidity requirements and to decrease interest rate risk. 

5. Ad Valorem Taxes 

AU taxable propeity in Louisiana is required by law to be assessed annually at a percentage of its 
fair market value by the parish assessor, except for public utUity property, which is assessed by the 
Louisiana Tax Commission. The 1974 Louisiana Constitution provides that land and res:identia! 
property are to be assessed at 10% of fair market value; however, agricultural, horticultural, marsh 
lands, timber lands, and certain historic buildings are to be assessed at 15% of feir market value. 
Fair market values are determined by the elected assessor ofthe pai'ish and ai-e subject to review 
and fmal certification by the Louisiana Tax Commissioa The assessor is required to reappraise all 
property every four years. Based on the reappraised value, the assessor wUl "roll forward" or "roll 
back" the tax millage to equal the prior year taxable amount. Ifthe assessor ''rolls back" the tax 
mUlage, the School Board has the option to "roll forward" the mUlage rate back to the prior year's 
rate. The School Boaid opted to "roU forward" die 2008-09 raiUage rate back to the 2007-08 rate. 

The School Board is permitted by constitutional and statutory authority of the State to levy taxes 
up to 29.33 mUls per $1,000 of assessed valuation for operations other than the payment of 
principal and interest on tong-term debt. This is the arrount which was levied for fiscal 2009. 

The School Board was authorized by the citizens ofthe East Ouachita Bond District to levy taxes 
sufficient enough to pay the annual principal and interest on the general obhgation bonds. The 
Sdiool Boaid levied 30,0 mills on the 2008 tax roll for the East Ouachita Bond District. The 
Sheriff of Ouachita Parish, as provided by State law, is the official tax coUector of general property 
taxes levied by the School Boanl 

The 2008 property tax calendar was as foltows: 

; Millage rates adopted Septembei- 9,2008 
Levy date November 12,2008 
Tax bills mailed November 18,2008 

j Due date December 31,2008 
j Lien date January 1,2009 

65 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

5, Ad Valorem Taxes (continued) 

State law requires the Sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the assessment 
is made. Property taxes become delinquent January I ofthe foltowing year. If taxes are not paid by 
the due date, taxes bear interest at the rate of 1.25% per month until the taxes are paid. After notice 
is given to the delinquent taxpayers, the Sheriff is required by the Constitution of the State of 
Louisiana to seU the least quantity of property necessary to seUle the taxes and interest owed. 

All property taxes are recorded in the Genaral Fund and in the East Ouachita Bond Debt Service 
Fund on the basis explained in Note l.C. Revenues in such funds are recognized in the accounting 
period in which they become measurable and availabto. Property taxes are considered measurable 
in the calendar year of the tax levy. Delinquent taxes considered to be uncoUectible are not 
recorded as revenues. Property taxes receivable are considered avaUable because they are 
substantiaUy coUected within 60 days subsequent to year-end. 

6. Receivables 

The receivables of $11,822,775 at June 30, 2009, as reported on the Govemmental Funds "were as 
foUows; 

General 
Fund 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 
Federal grants 
Otiier 
Total S465.200 

Major 
Special 

Revenue 
Fimd-
District 

#1 
Sales Tax 

Nonmajor 
Funds -
Other 

Goveriunentnl 

$1.005.376 $10.352.199 

Total 

$388,100 
-

43,095 
34.005 

$ 
1,005,376 

-
-

$ 29,735 
5,149,324 
3.392,454 
1.780.686 

$ 417.835 
6,154,700 
3,435,549 
1,814.691 

All receivables are expected to be collected within the next fiscal year. 
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The changes m capital assets were as foUows: 

Govemmental Activities: 
Capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 
Land 
Constructton in progress — 
BuUdings 
Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated; 
Capital assets, being 
depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and equipment 
Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 
Less accumulated 
depreciation: 
BuUdings and improvements 
Fumiture and equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 
Govemmental activities, capital 
assets, net 

Balance Balance 
June 30,2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009 

$6,059,839 $8,000 $ - $6,067,839 

5.826.932 7.838.924 (4.910.5641 8.755.292 

11.886.771 7.846.924 r4.910.564) 14.823.131 

246,677,703 10,532,666 
36.936.254 L597.208 

257,210,369 
(733.151) 37.80iO.311 

283.613.957 12.129.874 (733.151) 295.010.680 

(80,321,991) (5,461,332) 
r23.934.6901 (2.806^06) 

n 04.256.681) (8.267.538) 

(85,783,323) 
696.458 (26.044.438) 
696.458 (111.827.761) 

179.357.276 3.862.336 (36.6931 183.182.919 

$11-709.260 ($4.?47,??7) 
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7. Capital Assets (confinued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to govemmental activities as follows: 

Instmctional services: 
Regular programs $6,125,018 
Special educatton programs 107,010 
Vocational programs 48,256 
Other instructional programs 180,894 
Special programs 128,891 
Adult/continuing educatton 284 

Support services: 
PupU support servto^ 19,421 
Instructional staff support services 113,030 
General administration 8,582 
School administratton 1,476 
Business services 33,953 
Plant services 533,808 
Studrait transportation services 607,042 
Central services 270,695 

Non-instructional services: 
Food service operattons 89.178 

Total d^eciatton expense $8.267 538 

During tiie 2008-09 fiscal year, the School Board entered into contracts totaling $23,356,333 and 
in the 10 prevtous years the School Board entered into contracts totaling $165,089,711 to construct 
8 schools, 2 vocattonal centers, and 9 multipurpose buildings and to make repairs and renovations 
to 2§ schools. The constructton is estimated to take three more years to conq)lete. Work started 
but not completed during the 2009 fiscal year on contracts totaling $8,755,292, was capitalized as 
constmction in progress - buildings. At June 30, 2009, the School Board had $315,083 in 
retainages related to constructton in progress. The retainages will be paid at the completion ofthe 
projects in the 2009-10 fiscal year. The retainages have not been included on the June 30, 2009, 
balance sheet ofthe Fund Financial Statements, as they wiU not be paid from available spendable 
resources. At June 30, 2009, these contracts have $8,755,292 remaining in work to be coirQ)leted 
within the next year. The contracts wUl be paid by the capital project funds and the West Ouachita 
Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund. 
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8. Retirement Systems 

In 1996, the School Board adopted Govemmental Accounting Standai-ds Board Statement No. 27, 
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers. The School Board had no 
pCTiston liabihty or asset at the effective date ofthe ti'ansition. 

Substantially aU employees ofthe School Board are members of two statewide retirement systems. 
In general, professional en^toyees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom workers are 
members of the Teachers' Retii'ement System of Louisiana (TRSL); other emptoyees, such as 
custodial personnel and bus drivers, aie members ofthe Louisiana School Employees* Retirement 
System (LSERS). These systems are cost sharing, muhiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by separate boards of trustees. Pertinent informatton relative to each plan foltows: 

A. Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) 

Plan Description: 

The TRSL consists of three membership plans: Regular Plan, Plan A, and Plan B. The School 
Board participates in two of the membership plans — the Regular Plan and Plan A. The TRSL 
provides retirement benefits as well as disabihty and survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit 
are required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become vested for disabihty 
and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and amended by State statute. 

The TRSL issues a publicly avaUable financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary mformation for the TRSL. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Tochers' Retirement System of Louisiana, Post Office Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70804-9123, or by calling (225) 925-6446. 

Funding Policy: 

Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% and 9.1% of their annual covered salary for the 
Regular Plan and Plan A, respectively. The School Board is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. The School Board ŝ contributton rate of annual covered payroll for the regular 
membership plan and for Plan A for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008. and 2007, were 15.5%, 
16.6%, and 15.8%, respectively, Membei* contiibutions and emptoyer contributions for the TRS 
are estabhshed by state law and rates are established by the Pubiic Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee. The School Board's employo- contribution for the TRS, as 
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provided by state law, is funded by the State of Louisiana through annual appropriations, by 
deductions fi'om tocal ad valorem taxes, and by remittances fix)mthe School Board. 

The Sdiool Board's contributions to tiie TRSL for the years ending June 30,2009,2008, and 2007, 
were $15^106,912, $15,593,453, and $12,683,766, respectively, equal to die required contributions 
for each year. 

B. Louisiana School Employees* Retirement System (LSERS) 

Plan Description: 

The LSERS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefrts. Ten years of 
service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become vested 
for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and amended by state statute. The 
LSERS issues a publicly available fmancial i-^ort that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary informatton for the LSERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Louisiana School Emptoyees* Retirement System, Post Office Box 44516, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70804, or by calling (225) 925-6484. 

Funding Policy: 

Plan members are required to contribute 7.50% of their annual covered salary and the School 
Board is required to contiibute at an actuariaUy determined rate, The School Board's contribution 
rate of annual covered payroll for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were 17.8%, 
18,1% and 19,6%, respectively. Member contributtons and employer contributions for the LSERS 
are established by state law and rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee. The School Board's employer contribution for the LSERS, as provided by state law, is 
fijnded by the State of Louisiana through annual appropriations and by remittances fixjm the 
School Board. 

The School Board's contribution to LSERS for the years ending June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 
were $2,093,669, $1,903,742, and $1,906,512, respectively, equal to the required contributicns for 
the year. 
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9. Other Post Employment Benefits 

As permitted by Louisiana Revised Statute 17:1223, the School Board provides certain continuing 
health care and life insurance benefits for ceilain retired emptoyees through the State group 
insurance plan, an agent multiple emptoyer defined benefit plan. Retired School Board employees 
are eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age, as defined under the applicable 
retirement system (see Note 8), while working for the School Board. Currently the Ouachita Parish 
School Board's post employment benefits plan provides emptoyees with a choice of participatton 
in one of three medical insurance plans, each with varying benefits: preferred provide 
organizatton (PPO), exclusive provider organization (EPO), or health maintenance organizatton 
(HMO). LSA-R.S. 42:801 - 859 assigns the authority to establish benefit plans and premium rates 
and negotiate contracts to the Office of Group Benefits under the direction ofthe Commissioner of 
Administration. The Office of Group Benefits' financial report is included in the Louisiana 
Con^rehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which may be obtained firom Office of 
Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy's website at www.doa.la.gov/Qsrap; by writing to P.O. 
Box 94095, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9095; or by calling (225)342-0708. 

The School Board recognizes the cost of providmg these benefits (the School Boaid's portion of 
premiums) as an exp^diture in the Govemmental Funds when the monthly premiums are due. The 
cost of retiree benefits totaled $5,230,663 during fiscal 2009; approximately 981 retirees receive 
benefits under this plan. 

In the Govermnent-wide Financial Statements in accordance with GASB 45 starting with the 2008 
fiscal year, the cost of health care and Ufe insurance benefits for active emptoyees is expensed 
when eamed. The liabihty for health care and life insurance for active and retired emptoyees 
previously earned benefits has been calculated and wiU be amortized over 30 years. The nionnal 
costs and the accrued liability for prevtously eamed benefits are based on the foltowing data and 
assumpttons: 
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Mortality Rate 

The mortaUty rate was determined by using the RP-2000 Static Healthy Mortality Table 
(sex distinct) with floating AA projections with the foltowing assumptions: 

1. Emptoyee mortality is projected to valuation plus 15 years 
2. Annuitant mortality is projected to valuation plus 7 years 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate) and Inflation Rate 

While GASB 45 allocates the costs of a postretirement benefit plan over the years of active 
en^loyment (when the promise of fiiture benefits ia potentially motivating an anployee), it 
does not require the fimding of such b^efits. There are two key points that need to be 
noted in this regard. First, the choice ofthe discount rate used in measuring the liabilities 
ofthe benefits is tied to the funding vehicle or lack thereof GASB 45 requires the use of a 
discoimt rate for an unfunded plan equal to what the sponsor earns on its general assets. 
Since a lower discount rate leads to higher liabiUties, a fimded plan will have lower 
liabilities than an unfonded plan with identical provisions and membership. Since it is 
anticipated that the annual required contribution will not be fi^ed, a 4% annual 
investment return is assumed in the actuarial evaluation which represents a reasonable 
estimate of short-term pooled fiinds. 

Amortization Method and Period 

The level dollar closed amortizatton method has been used. An amortization period of 30 
years has been used for the medical benefits and for the life insurance bciiefits. The 
valuation used the closed group method, under whidi future entrants are not considered. 
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Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 

In the absence of readily available cost trend data firom the Office of Group Benefits, the 
expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums is based on an understanding of 
the plan and MilHman 's Health Cost Guidelines. The assumed annual per capita cost of 
medical and pharmacy benefits for select ages are iUustrated below. These are gross 
amounts prior to reduction for any retiree contributions. 

PPO 

Medicare Eligible 

Pre-65 
Post-65 

Not Medicare Eligible 

Pre-65 
Post-65 

EPO 

Pre-65 
Post-65 

HMO 

Pre^65 
Post-65 

Refiree 
Only. 

$11,676 
$3,797 

Retiree 
OnlY 

$11,676 
$11,676 

Retiree 
Only. 

$12,143 
$3,948 

Retiree 
Only. 
$11,209 
$3,645 

Retiree 
& Spouse 
$20,617 
$6,825 

Retiree 
& Spouse 
$20,617 
$14,704 

Retiree 
& Spouse 
$21,442 

$7,097 

Retiree 
Sc Spouse 
$19,792 

$6,552 
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Medical Inflation (Trend Assumption) 

The trend assumptions for 
summarized below: 

Year 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 and ongoing 

Life Insurance 

medical and 

Pre-
Medicare 
10,75% 
10.50% 
10.25% 
9,50% 
8.50% 
7.50% 
6,50% 
5.50% 
5.00% 

pharmacy costs 

Trend 
Post-
Medicare 
9.00% 
8.75% 
8.50% 
8.25% 
7.75% 
7.25% 
6.50% 
5.75% 
5.00% 

vetkee premiums are 

Life insurance amount for retirees - as provided in data 
Life insurance amount for fiiture retirees - $30,000 assumed 
Emptoyee contributions - $171.12, decreasing to $132.48 at age 65, decreasing to 
$80,64 at age 70. Contributions assumed to increase 3.2% p^- year 

Withdrawal Rates 

The following service related sample withdrawal rates are shown betow: 

hm 
25 
30 
35 
40 
45 
50 
The rate of withdrawal is multiphed by 1.25 for the year first of employment. 

Males 
7.0% 
8.0% 
6.0% 
3.0% 
2.0% 
2.0% 

Females 
7.0% 
8.0% 
6.0% 
3.0% 
2.0% 
2.0% 
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Disability Rates 

The foltowing service related sample disabiH 

Age. 
25 
30 
35 
40 
45 
50 
55 

Retirement Rate 

Male 
0,01% 
0.03% 
0.06% 
0.10% 
0.18% 
0.24% 
0.47% 

Female 
0.01% 
0.03% 
0.06% 
0.10% 
0.18% 
0.24% 
0.47% 

It is assumed that entitlement to benefits will commence at the expected retirement date 
(that is, the date at which the eligible employee will actually retire) under the pension plan 
which covers employees. It is assumed that this retirement date is three vea/s later than the 
earHest date at which the employee is eligible for regular retirement benefits. That '̂ regular 
retirement" date is defined as the earliest ofthe following: 

30 years of service credit at any age; or 
25 years of service credit at age 55; or 

5 yeai-s of service credit at age 60, 
20 years of service at any age - early retirement 
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The assumed percent of emptoyees reaching retirement are as follows: 

Retirement Rates 

Age 
38 
39 
40 
45 
50 
55 
60 
65 
70 
71 
72 

Male 
5.0% 
6.0% 
4.0% 
3.0% 
3.0% 

10.3% 
27.7% 
33.0% 
38.3% " 
38.5% 

100.0% 

Feijiale 
5.0% 
6.0% 
4.0% 
3.0% 
3.0% 

10.3% 
27.7% 
33.0% 
38.3% 
38.5% 

100.0% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The amount of the current employer portion of the healthcare premiiitns for retiree 
cov^age has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of benefits to 
be paid; the Office of Group Benefits' ''Official Schedule of Rates'' effective July 1, 2007 
has been used for this purpose. It has been assumed 100 % of employees wfio elect 
coverage while in active entptoyment and who are eligible for retiree medical benefits will 
continue the same medical coverage in retirement. It is assured that 40% of members 
electing coverage will also elect coverage for a spouse. Females are assumed to he three 
years younger than males. 

Actuarial Cost Method 

The actuarial cost method detearmines, m a systematic way, the incidence of plan sponsor 
contributtons required to provide plan benefits. It also determines how actuai-ial gains and tosses 
are recognized in OPEB costs. These gains and losses result firom the difference between the 
actual experience under the plan and what was anticipated by the actuarial assumptions. 
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The cost of the Plan is derived by making ceitain specific assun^>ttons as to rates of interest, 
mortaUty, tumover, etc. ^ i c h are assumed to bold for many years into the future. Since actual 
experience may differ somewhat fi'om the tong term assumptions, the costs determined by the 
valuatton must be regarded as estimates ofthe true costs ofthe Plan. 

Actuarial liabilities and comparative costs were con:q>uted using the unit credit actuarial cost 
method, whtoh consists ofthe following cost components: 

1. The normal cost is the actuarial present value of benefits allocated to the 
evaluation year. 

2. Tbe actuarial accrued liability is the actuarial present vahie of benefits accrued 
as ofthe valuatton date. 

3- Valuation assets are equal to the market value of assets as ofthe valuation 
date, if any. 

4. Unfimded actuarial accrued liability is the dijfeence between the actuai'ial 
accrued liabiUty and the valuatton assets. It is amortized over the maximimi 
pei-missible period undo* GASB 45 of 30 years. 

It should be noted that GASB 45 allows a variety of cost methods to be used. Thb method was 
selected because it is generaUy easy to understand and is widely used for the valuation of post 
employment benefits other than pensions. 

Actuarial Valae of Plan Assets 

Actuarial value of assets is the value of casK investments, and other property belonging to the 
plan, as used by the actuary for the purpose of an actuarial valuation. Since this is the fu-st 
actuarial valuation, there are not any assets to be actuariaUy valued; however, it is anticipated that 
future valuattons of actuarial assets will be based on Actuarial Standards Board Actuarial Standard 
of Practice Number 6, Measuring Retiree Group Benefit Obligations, which is appUcable to post 
employment benefits plans and generally requires valuing dedicated plan a s s ^ using a method 
that takes into account market value. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumpttons 

Actuarial valuattons involve estimates ofthe value of report^ amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events for into the fiiture. The actuarial valuation for post employment benefits 
includes estimates and assumptions regarding (1) tumover rate; (2) retlrem^t rate; (3) healthcare 
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cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate (investment retum assumption); and (6) the 
period to which the costs apply (past, current, or fiiture years of service by employees), Acfiuarially 
determined amounts are subject to continual reviston as actuarial results are compared to past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future 

The actuarial calculattons are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of tbe 
substantive plans (the plans as understood by tiie Ouachita Parish School Board Fund and its 
employee plan members) at the time ofthe valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs hetween 
the Ouachita Parish School Board and its plans members to that point. The projectfon of benefits 
for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effect of legal or 
contractual funding Umitation on the pattem of cost sharing between the Ouachita Parisli School 
Board and plan members in the future. Consisteait with the long-terra perspective of actuarial 
calculation, the actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued Uabiiities and the actuarial value of assets. 

The following table shows the Ouachita Parish Sdiool Board's annual post employment benefits 
cost, percentage of that cost contributed and the net unfunded post emptoyment benefits UabiUty: 

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net Unfunded 
Year Post Employment Annual Cost Post Employment 
gnded Benefits Cost Contilbuted Benefits Liability 

6/30/09 $25,522,412 20.5% $40,597,237 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

In the 2007-08 fiscal year the Ouachita Parish School Board started recording post-employment 
benefits in its financial stateinents. The School Board has not made any contribution to a post 
employment benefits plan trust. Th«-efore, the plan has no assets, and hence has a fiinded ratto of 
zero. As of June 30, 2008 the first and most recent actuarial valuation, the actuarial accmed 
liability was $40,597,237> which is defined as that portion, as determined by a particular actuarial 
cost method (the Ouachita Parish School Board used the Unit Credit Cost method), of an actuarial 
present value of a post en^toyment plan benefits and expenses which is not provided by normal 
cost (i.e the cost ofthe actuarial present value of post employment benefits for active emptoyees 
fi'om their hire date through June 30,2008, and for r^ired employees fixjm their hire daite through 
their date of retirement). 
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Since the plan was not fiinded in 2008 or 2009, the entire actuarial accrued liabiUty of $40,597,237 
was unfunded. The annual payroU of active emptoyees cov^ed by the plan, called the covered 
payroU, was $119,364,136 in 2009; the ratto of the unfimded actuarial accrued Uability to the 
covered payroU was 34.0%. Salaries are not used to determine either medical or life post 
employment b^iefits. 

Annual Post Employment Benefits Cost and Net Post Employment Benefits Liability 

The table below shows the Ouachita Parish School Board's annual post employment benefits for 
tbe year ended June 30,2009, and changes in the unfunded post emptoyment benefits liability: 

Normal Cost $11,835,999 
30-year actuarial accrued liabiUty 
amortization of medical and 
Ufe insurance 13,686.413 

Annual required conUibution (ARC) 25,522,412 

Interest on prior year net post employment 
benefits liability -0-
Adjustments to the annual required 
contribution -0-

Annual post employment benefits expense 25,522,412 

Contributions made f5.23 0.663) 
Increase in xmfiinded post employment 
benefits Uability 20,291,749 

Unfunded post emptoyment 
liability - July 1,2008 20.305.488 

Unfunded post eo^toyment benefits 
liability-June 30,2009 
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9. Other Post Employment Benefits (continued) 

Required Contribution Rates 

As determined by the Office of Group Benefits and approved by the Louisiana Legislature, the 
emptoyer paid 75% ofthe premium cost for post en^toyment benefits for retired emptoyees and 
their femUies, and the retirees paid 25% of the premium cost; monthly premhim cost for retired 
employees ranged fi-om $79 for a single retiree with Medicare in the HMO plan to $511 for a 
retkee and spouse without Medicare hi the EPO plaa Emptoyees do not contribute fo theii- post 
employment benefits costs until they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. 

The Ouachita Parish School Board's annual medical and life post emptoyment benefits cost 
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the emptoyer, an amount 
actuariaUy detemiined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement Number 45. The 
Ouachita Parish School Board's annual required contributton represents a level of fimding that, if 
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize the unfunded 
actuarial Uability (or fimding excess) over a period of thirty (30) years for health and life 
insurance. The total annual required contributton for the year ended June 30,2009, is $25,522,412, 
ofwhich the School Board opted to fimd only the required current year premium contributions to 
the Office of Group Benefits totaUng $5,230,663 in 2009. The total unfunded post emptoyment 
benefits UabUity at June 30,2009 was $226,218,131. 

Funding Policy 

Currently, there are no requii*ements for emptoyers to contribute to their post en:$>loyment benefits 
plans. In 2007-08, the Ouachita Parish School Board started recognizing the cost of providing 
these benefits (the Ouachita Parish School Board*s portton of premiums) as an expense when the 
benefits premiums were due and thus financed the cost of post employment benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis. The School Board implemented Govermnental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement Number 45, Accoimting and Financial Rq>orting by emptoyers for Fost employment 
Benefits Other than Pension (GASB Statement 45), prospectively in 2007-08 and at that time 
began to record its portion of premiums as an expense during the period of active service by the 
employee (normal cost). In 2009 and 2008, the Ouachita Parish School Board*s portion of health 
care and life insurance benefit premium, for both active and retired emptoyees totaled $17,105,579 
and $16,353,730, respectively. The School Board at tiiis time does not plan to fiind the post 
en^toyment liability other than the monthly health and life insurance premiums as they become 
due. 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

9. Other Post Employment Benefits (conthiued) 

Concentration of Fundhig Sources 

The Ouachita Parish School Board ŝ principal source of revenues, consist mainly ofthe Minimum 
Foundation Program (MFP) fimding firom the State of Louisiana and local ad vatorem and sales 
taxes. If the amount of these revenues fall betow budgeted levels, the Ouachita Parish School 
Board's operation results could be adversely affected. 

10. Deferred Compensation Flan 

The School Board offers a deferred compensation plan for en^Ioyees under the provisions of 
Intemal Revenue Service Code 457 (Deferred Compensation Plan). 

Part-time and substitute emptoyees are required to contribute 7,5% of their compensation to the 
Deferred Compensation Plan. FuU-time emptoyees may voluntarily make contributions to the 
Deferred Compensation Flan. The School Board does not contribute to the Deferred 
Compensation Plan. At June 30, 2009, the Plan had assets with an approximate market value of 
$1,997,123. The assets in the Plan are held in trust solely for the benefit of paiticipants and their 
beneficiaries. Therefore, in accordatK;e with GASB Statement No. 32 they are not reported in the 
School Board's fmancial statements. 

11. Agency Fnnd Deposits Due Others (FFS level only) 

A summary of changes in agency fiind deposits due others follows: 

Agency Funds: 
School Activity 
Migrant Funds of 

Other Pai-ishes 

Total 

Balance 
Julyl, 
2008 

$3,461,296 

$3,461,296 

Additions 

$10,082,558 

60,623 

$10,143,181 

Deletions 

($10,151,355) 

(60,623) 

($10,211,978) 

Balance 
June 30, 

2009 

$3,392,499 

$3,392,499 
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12. General Long-Term ObUgations 

The general obligation bonds are obligattons of East Ouachita Bond District, with maturities from 
2010 to 2033 and intei*est rates fixjm 4.0% to 6.0%. General obligation bonds' principal and 
interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad vatorem tax 
levy on taxable property within the respective taxing districts. In accordance with Louisiana 
Revised Statute 39:562, the School Boatd is legaUy restricted fix)m incurring long-term general 
obligation bonded debt in excess of 35% ofthe total assessed value of aU property in the taxing 
district. At June 30, 2009, the statutory limit and debt margins are as foltows: 

East 
Ouachita 

Bond 

Assessed Value 

35% of assessed value 
Outstandmg General 

Obligatton Bonds 

Debt Margin 

$ 73,896,626 

(63.325.0001 

S 10.57^626 

The following shows the changes in general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and Ihnited tax 
certificates of indebtedness; 

inferest 

OriglMl imie 

General oUfgAffoit bondc 

43%-6.0% issued 3/1/99; 
A«» 2010-2024 

S.2%-7jO%isaicdmm; 
due 2010^025 

3.0%^^% issued 4y26At5; 
due 2010^025 

XS25%^.750% issued 3/14/06; 
due 2010-2024 

OutElAndtng 

Juiy 1. 

2008 

S925,000 

935.000 

12.305.000 

21,600,000 

Borrowings 

$ -

-

-

Paymond 

(5925,000) 

(455.000) 

(90,000) 

(75.000) 

Outstanding 

June 30» 

2009 

S -

480,000 

12,215,000 

21^5,000 

Rat«Oa 

Unpaid 

Debt 

. 

5.0% 

3.50% 

3.625%-

4.75% 

Tola! 
pQlure 
flntcrest 

S " 

24,960 

5,060,921 

8.038.854 

(continued) 
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12. General Long-Term Obilgatfons (continue^ 

OHgliMi Issue 

Outstanding 

July I, 

200S Borrowlnj^ Payments 

Oalstandlng 
Juno 30, 

2009 

Interest 
RateOti 
Uupnld 

Do1)t 

Total 
Future 

I ntcrest 

General obllgarton bonds: 

3.75^fr«.0%iEsatdlQ/l/07; 
Due2010-2032 

4.0%-6.0% issued 1/1/08; 
due 2010^032 

4.0%-5.0%iisucd I/I/09; 
due2010-2033 

Dcfcfred amount of reftinding 

Uoanwrtized bond dJscoont 

Total general obligation bonds 

Revenue bonds: 

4.25 %-7.0% issued 9/1/98; 
due 2009-2011 

4.S%-6.0% issued 4/1/99; 
duo2009-2011 

4.9%-5.75%TwnM 9/1/00; 
due2009.20n 

4.I%-7.0% issued 3/1/01; 
Aie2009^024 

5.25%-7.0% issued 3/01/02; 
due2009-2024 

3.7554^.15% isnwd 3/14/06; 
duc2009^024 

4X)%^.0% issued 10/01/07; 
dito2009-2024 

3a5%-*-25% issued lO/H/08 
due2O09-2O24 

3.00%4.25% issued 3/30A)9 
due 2009-2023 

Deferred anwimt of refunding 

Uiwnroitizcd bond (fiscounl 

Totai rcvenoe btmds 

59,755^0 

10,000/)00 

. 

( 3 0 8 ^ ) 

(25,326) 

55,182,982 

19,365,000 

15,540,000 

885,000 

6.675fl00 

2,735,000 

8;210,000 

H,950,000 

-

-

(225,585) 

(669) 

65,133.743 

S 

-

9,785,000 

-
. 

9.785.000 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,000,000 

29,490,000 

(569,200) 

_ 
33,920.800 

(S215.000) 

CZ20.000) 

_ 

225^99 

28,326 

(1,726.075) 

(16,695,000) 

(13,265.000) 

(280,000) 

(230,000) 

(55,000) 

(55.000) 

(450,000) 

150,740 

335 

(30,875,925) 

S9̂ 40.QOO 

9,780,000 

9.785,000 

(83^93) 

-

63,241,907 

2,670.000 

2,275.000 

605.000 

6.445,000 

2.680.000 

8.155.000 

11,500.000 

5.000.000 

29.490.000 

(644.048) 

(334) 

68.175,618 

5.75% 

4.0054. 

6.0% 

4.0%-

-
, 

4.3%-
4.4% 

4.5%-
6.0% 

5.75% 

4.1%-
5.0% 

5.25%-
7.0% 

3.75%-

4,15% 

4.0%-
5.5% 

355%-
4.25% 

3.00%-

4.25% 

-
_ 
-

$5,498,526 

5,772,656 

6,836.668 

-
_ 

31.232,585 

179,090 

161,738 

35,219 

3,060^90 

1,857,540 

3,289,591 

4.198,81! 

1,785,93! 

10,814,730 

-
. 

25383,040 

(continued) 
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12, General Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Orlglnar tsiuc 

LbnrtedTax Certificates: 
3.5%-4.4% issued 3-1-02; 
Due 2010^012 

3.0%-3.7% issued 3-28-03; 
duo 2010-2012 

Total limited tax celificalcs of 
indebtedness 

Total all bonds and certificates 

ofindebtcdness 

Outstanding 

Julyl, 

2008 

S3;205,000 

4,500,000 

7,705/K)0 

^m^^ijin 

Borro^vings 

S -

M^m^m 

Paymenls 

($745,000) 

(1.040,000) 

fl,785^0) 

î 2wm \̂ 

Outstanding 

June30, 

2009 

S2.460.000 

3.460,000 

5,920,000 

^|?7_3?7,^^^ 

RatcOd 

Unpaid 

Dcia 

4^%. 
4.4% 

33S%-
3.70% 

Total 

Future 

Interest 

5216,800 

255.U0 

471,910 

(concluded) 

Principal and interest ai'e due in total, to maturity, as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 

2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2033 

Total 

Principal 
Payments 

$7,195,000 
7,610,000 
7,970,000 
6,145,000 
6,405,000 

37,670,000 
43,735,000 
14,850,000 
6,485,000 

mM^5MQ 

Interest 
Payments 
$5,597,720 
5,369,596 
5,051,381 
4,731,466 
4,419,649 

18,747,248 
9,812,342 
2,696,019 

662,114 

$?7.m535 

Total 
$12,792,720 

12,979,596 
13,021,381 
10,876,466 
10,824,649 
56,417,248 
53,547,342 
17,546,019 
7,147,114 

$J95.]5^,?J5 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

12, General Long-Terjn Obligations (continued) 

The folbwing is a summary of govenunental activities bng-term obligation transactions for the 
year ended June 30,2009: 

Amounts 
Baiance Balance Due 

Long-term June 30, June 30, Within One 
Obligations 2008 Additions Deductions 2009 Year 

Claims liability 
Compensated 
absences 

Other post 
employment 
benefits 

Bonded 
debt/limited 
tax c^ficates 

Otto 
Total 

$1,305,031 

6,223,512 

20,305,488 

128,021,725 

265,317 

$402,247 

729,683 

25,522,412 

43,705,800 
423,212 

($880,854) 

(322,709) 

(5,230.663) 

(34,390,000) 

$826,424 

6.630,486 

40,597,237 

137,337,525 
428,905 

$450,000 

325,000 

-

6,960,831 
333,3^6 

fS41.083.850> $8,069.197 

Other long-term obligations at June 30, 2009, consist of bond premiums of $113,822 and retainage 
payable of$315,083. 

The following is a smnmary of governmental activities bond discoxmt transactions for the year 
ended June 30, 2009: 

Bond discount outstanding, July 1,2008 
Additioi^ 
Deductions 
Bond discount outstanding, June 30, 2009 

$28,995 

r28.66n 
$ ?34 

Payments on the general obligation bonds payable that pertain to the Sdiool Board's govemmental 
activities ai"e made by the East Ouachita Bond Debt Seivice Fund, Payments on the i-evesiue bonds 
payable and the tax liability certificates of indebtedness that pertain to the School Board's 
govermnental activities are funded by transfers from the West Ouachita Sales Tax Special Revenue 
Fund to the West Ouachita Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund. The compensated absences liability 
attributable to the govemmental activities will be liquidated by the School Board's General Fund. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

12. Genernl I^on^Term Obligations (continued) 

The School Board does not have plans to place fiands in an irrevocable trust to liquidate the other 
post en^loyment benefits liability. The School Board plans to continue on a pay-as-you go basis 
for OPEB benefits. 

The Ouachita Parish School Boaid made an additional payment from its West Ouachita Bond No. 
2 Debt Service Fund totaling $114,833 and issued $29,490,000 in revenue refunding bonds on 
Maich 30, 2009, to purchase United States Govemment State and Local Govemmenfe Series 
Securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for ihe purpose of generating resources for all 
future debt service payments of $28,460,000 of revenue bonds. The outstanding balances ofthe 
defeased 1998 Smes and the 1999 Series are $2,670,000 and $2,275,000, respectively at June 30, 
2009. The 1998 and 1999 Series will be called for redemption on Sept^nber 1, 2012. As a result, 
this portion ofthe refunded bonds is considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed 
from the govemmeutal activities column ofthe statement of net assets. This advance refunding 
was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 15 years by $1,327,'972 and 
resulted in an economic gain of $1,001,568. 

1998 Issue 1999 Issue Total 

Outstanding - June 30,2008 $19,365,000 $15,540,000 $34,905,000 
Principal Payment September 1,2008 (800,000) (700,000) (1,500,000) 
Debt remaining with Ouachita 
Parish School Board (2,670.000) (2.275,000) (4.945,000) 

Defeased bonds-June 30,2009 $j5.895.QQ0 fU2.S§SJM ^'^^-WMQ 

Old debt service payments $95,645,355 
New debt service payments (94,203,040) 
Less additional debt service payment (114,833) 
Other 490 
Savings 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

13, Interfund Assets/Liabilities (FFS ievel only) 

Individual balances due from/to other fimds at June 30,2009 were as follows: 
Due To Due From 
Other Other 
Funds Funds 

Major Fimds: 
General Fund 
District #1 Sales Tax: 
Deficit cash balance 

Nonmajor Funds: 
Special Revenue Funds: 
Title 1 Programs: 
Deficit cash balances 
Indirect cost 

Total Titlel Programs 
Special Education IDEA B: 
Deficit cash balances 
Indirect cost 

Total Special Education IDEA-B 
Other Federal Programs: 
Deficit cash balance 
Indirect cost 

Total Othei- Federal Prograius 
State Grants: 
Deficit cash balances 
Indirect cost 

Total State Grants 
Debt Service Fund; 
West Ouachita Bond: 
Deficit cash balance 

Capital Projects Fund: 
West Ouachita 2007 Construction 

$ - $4,128,463 

266,491 

945,479 
76,221 

1,021,700 

732,543 
55,559 

788̂ 102 

671,767 
55,794 

727,561 

547,495 
1,527 

549,022 

6,323 

769,264 

Total 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

13. Interfund Assets/Liabilities (FFS level only) (continued) 

The balances due for cash deficits are due to not receiving reimbursement by year end fix>m the 
grantor for reimbursement type grants. The General Fund pays for the expenditure for the grant 
fimd imtil the reimbursement is received. Indirect cost balances r^resent the outstanding iiadirect 
cost payments due to the General Fund for outstanding grant requests for funds filed but not 
received firom grantors by year end. All interfund transactions at year end will be completed 
during the 2009-10 fiscal year. 

14. Reserves and Designations of Fund Balances 

The following Govemmental Funds fijnd balances are legally restricted for the following purposes: 

Fund Reserved for Amount 
Major Funds: 

General Fund 
Genial Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
Total General Fund 

Special Revenue Funds: 
District #1 Sales Tax 
District #1 Sales Tax 

District #1 Sales Tax 
Dishict #1 Sales Tax 

District #1 Sales Tax 
Total Major Special Revenue Funds 

Debt Service Fund: 
West Ouachita Bond No. 2 

Coital Projects Fund: 
East Ouachita 2009 Construction 

Encumbrances 
Protested taxes 
Grants 
Scholarship and donations 

Instructional costs 
Capital improvements and 
facility acquisition 

Mandated costs 
Restoration of salary 
reductions 
Maintenance and operntinn 

Debt service 

Capital projects 

$7,106 
250,313 

1,040,896 
4,988 

1,303,303 

2,637,199 

2,121,709 
5,011,130 
4,675,787 

(37,821) 
14,408,004 

6.180,124 

21,144,502 

(continued) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

14. Reserves and Designations of Fund Balances (FFS level only) (continued) 

Fund 
Nonmajor Funds: 

j Special Revenue Funds: 
Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - 1 % 
Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax ~ .5% 
West Ouachita Sales Tax 

• School Food Service 
1 School Food Service 

Other Fedeial Programs 
Local Grants 

; Total Nonmajor Special Revenue 

Debt Servbe Funds: 
East Ouachita Bond 

I West Ouachita Bond 
West Ouachita Bond 
Total Nonmajor Debt Seivice 

Capital Projects Funds: 
West Ouachita Construction 2007 
West Ouachita Construction 2008 

Reserved for 

Salaries and related benefits 
Salaries 
Construction, repairs, & debt 
service payments 
Inventory 
Food services 
Pre-school programs 
Various restiicted local grants 

Debt service 
Debt service 
Prot^t taxes 

Capital projects 
Capital projects 

Amount 

$4,314,663 
1,402,238 

5,682,043 
n 0,298 
278,006 

2,244 
110,092 

11,899,584 

4,651,919 
213,289 
105,137 

4,970,345 

1,482,623 
4,228,082 

Total Nonmajor Capital Projects 5,710,705 

Total Reserved Fund Balances 
(concluded) 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

14. Reserves and Designations of Fund Balances (FFS level only) (continued) 

The School Board has designated the following Governmental Funds fimd balances for these 
specific purposes: 

Fund 

Major Funds: 
General Fund 

Nonmajor Funds: 
Special Revenue Funds: 
Air Conditioning Redemption 
State Grants 

Total Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Total Designated Fund Balances 

Designated for 

Driver's Educatbn 

Major air conditioning repairs 
Act 13 Special Ed. and Gifted 

Amount 

. $175,318 

1,977,314 
, 115,717 
Z093.031 

^rrn^m 
15. Litigation and Contingencies 

The School Board is a defendant in sevei-al lawsuits. Management for the School Board believes 
that the potential claims against the School Board not covered by insurance have been adequately 
accmed at June 30,2009. 

As more fiilly described in Note I.R, the School Board is exposed to various risks through its self 
insurance plan for damage to property fix>m natural disasters, fire and errors and omissions. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (continued) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

16* Interfund Transfers (FFS level only) 

Transfers to/from other Govemmental Funds for the year ended June 30, 2009 were as fo)lo~ws 

Major Funds: 
General Fund 
District #1 Sales Tax 
Nonmajor Funds: 
Special Revenue Funds: 
West Ouachita Sales Tax 
School Food Service 
Other Federal Programs 
State Grants 

Debt Service Fimds: 
West Ouachita Bond No. 2 

Capital Projects Funds: 
West Ouachita Construction 2007 
West Ouachita Constmction 2008 
Sale of "Old" Claiborne Elementary 

Proprietary Fund: 
Intemal Service Fund 

Total 

Transfers totaling $7,688,600 and $114,633 were made from the West Ouachita Sales Tax Special 
Revenue Fund to the West Ouachita Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund as principal aad interest 
payments became due and for additional principal on the refinancing of the 1998 and 1999 
Revenue bonds, respectively. The West Ouachita Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund also 
transferred $486,251 to the West Ouachita Construction Capital Projects Fund to cover additional 
constructbn costs than originally anticipated. Transfers were made from the General Fund to 
supplement Federal and State Grants totaling $4,888 and $51,128, respectively, for Special 
Education and Gifted and Talented programs. The General Fund also ti-ansferred $1,495,672 to the 
School Food Seivice Special Revenue Fund to eliminate a cumulative deficit in the fimd. A 
transfer of $631,358 was made from the General Fund to the District #1 Sales Tax Special 
Revenue Fund to supplement repairs and small renovations. To fiind the claims liability and 
insurance premiums in the Intemal Service Fund, a transfer of $600,000 was made from the 
G^ieral Fund. The West Ouachita Construction 2008 and the Sale of "Old" Claibome Elementary 

Transfei's 
In 

$ -
631,358 

1,495,672 
4,888 

51,128 

9,270,697 

486,251 

600,000 

Transfers 
Out 

$2,783,046 

8,289,484 

-

453,487 
1,013,977 

_ 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (concluded) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

16. Interfund Transfers (FFS level only) (continued) 

Special Revenue Funds transfered $453,487 and $1,013,977, respectively, to the West Ouachita 
Bond No. 2 Debt Service Fund to meet revenue bond reserve requirements. 

17, Subsequent Events 

On October 20, 2009, the School Board authorized the advertisement for sealed bids for the 
purchase of $9.2 million General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 on December 1, 2009. The 
bonds will be repaid over a 25 year period at an overall interest rate of 4,04 percent. The bonds 
will be repaid by an ad valorem tax authorized by the citizens in the Bond District. The bond 
proceeds will be used to complete the construction of two new schools and to complete 
renovatbns to the schools in the East Ouachita Bond District. 

On October 20, 2009, the School Board adopted the resolution providing for the incnrring of 
debt and issuance of $10 milHon of Revenue Bonds (taxable QSCB), Series 2009. The revenue 
bonds will be repaid over a 15 year period at a .6 percent interest rate. The bonds will be used 
for various construction projects in the West Ouadiita Bond District. The bonds will be repaid 
with the proceeds fit>m the 1 percent sales tax collected in the West Ouachita Bond District and 
reported in the West Ouachita Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund. 
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AcadeiM§€ EmeeMemce 

Our Mission: 
Through collaboration 

among all stakeholders, the 
Ouachita Parish School System 

will ensure that all students attain 
the knowledge and skills needed 

to be productive citizens. 
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Monroe, Louisiana 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL 
IlSfFORMATION 

(PART B) 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds With LegaUy Adopted Budgets 

General Fund 

The General Fund accounts for all activities of the School Board except for those that are 
accounted for in other funds. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds accoimt for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital 
projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. These fiinds, for the 
most part, are estabhshed for specific educational purposes and fiinded through the U. S. 
Department of Education or the Louisiana State Department of Educatioa The School Board is 
centrally located in Northeast Louisiana and acts as a regional fiscal agent for the State 
Department of Education for many educational programs. 

District #1 Sales Tax Fund 

The District #1 Sales Tax Fund collects, records and disburses funds related to the .5% 
sales tax renewed in October 2(K)1 for 10 years to provide additional support for the 
school system The School Board designated the tax for capital improvements and facility 
and equipment support—38%, classroom instruction—36%, mandated costs—14%„ and 
salary restoration—12%, 
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Ouacbtte Parish School Board 
Monroe, Loalslans 

GENERALFUND 
Budgetary Comparison Schtdulft ifSAfiS* Baefs) 

F?«cal V*ar End«d Juna 30,200& 

Budfletary Amd balanoo al 
tngtnntnaofyear 

Rfisources llnTtowa) 
Uxsi)soatcea: 

MvBiotemlBXes 
1 % ad valorem lax • tax coftodor 
Eamlnaa on kjvestments 
Other 

rotaJ local souroes 
State sources:: 

State eqUaBraUon 
Revenue sharing 
ProfesElorTa) Impravement Program -
State contftuUon for teachw retirement 
Restrfc(edBrent$-ftvaW 
Unresirictorf grants-fo-aW 

Tot^ slate sources 
Federal sources: 
Federal programs 
Other fedaral support 

Toted Fedar^ sources 

Other Rnancieg sources 
Ptticeedft from s ^ oT assets 
Trarafeisltt 

Total other fltundng sources 

Amours avaCatde Eorapproprt^tont 

Original 
Budget 

5 17.801.673 

12.323,863 
463,600 

1,600.000 
1.988.650 

ie,2?3,e33. 

111,651,728 
824,000 
250.000 

1.O0O 

112.726.728 

215.000 

216.000 

1.235,074 
1.235,074 

147.942.308 

Final 
Budget 

S 17.297,206 

12.490.000 
453,600 

1.000,000 
2.262.206 

16.195.705 

112.414,739 
824,000 
334.638 

80,000 

113.662.275 

21B.O00 

216.000 

1^2^282 
1.312.282 

148,682.468 

Actual 

S 17,297,206 

13.354,282 
486.967 
641.508 

2,327,038 
18.789,793 

112,414,736 
830,587 
336,710 

42.037 
818.454 

114.441.536 

264.696 
264,696 

22,654 

22,864 

148,815,885 

VarfamreW»h 
Final Budget 

5 

864.282 
13v467 

{368/(e4) 
74.833 

594.088 

6.687 
1,183 

42.037 
738.454 

(9.000) 
779.281 

{216.000) 
264.696 
49iie6 

22.654 
(1.312,282) 
{1,289,628i 

133.417 

Charges io approprtaOons (outflows) 
Cuitont 
fnsln/dtofwJ se/vteest 

Regular programs 
Spedal education ptograms 
Vocanonol programs 
Olher (nstmcUonal pfDgrams 
Specfal pngrams 
AduRfcctf^ub>g education 

Support flsMceK 
PupQ support secvtces 
Instmctional staff support services 
General admtnlstrBtfon 
School adminbtraUon 
Busfiiess seMces 
Plant services 
Sfudenl (n^BportaUon senfces 
CeMiel serwteae 

Nonln^njctiona] services: 
Food secriceoperaUons 
Commun^ sen/tce progranis 
fecVay acqulsIUon and cortstrucQon 

Dewswvfce: 
Leselfaefl 

Other finenclpg uses 

Transfers out 

Total chai^gesloepiXDpdsUons . 

Sudgatary fond batance 
at and of year 

64,258,348 
14.674.600 
1,163,520 
1,010J2B9 

3/SO 
32,074 

4.723,067 
5.219.445 
1.815,628 
8.091,689 
1,924.250 

15.982.210 
e.827;je4 
3.031.768 

431.367 
17,043 

-

62.235.791 
15.134.919 
1.285,207 
1.031.127 

3,376 
28.224 

4,610.301 
5,277.429 
1.867.898 
0.233,519 
1,971.980 

16.047.930 
7.106,945 
3.077.571 

736,675 
21.350 
8.160 

60,645.736 
15.760,636 
1,322.462 
1.008.827 

162.617 
39.469 

4,807.840 
5.281.588 

774.641 
9.444.565 
2.046,187 

18.481,153 
7,678,137 
2.916.895 

931,063 
21.310 

-

1.690.0S3 
(625.016) 
(37.255) 
22.300 

C159.242) 
(11.235) 

{188.449} 
(14,159) 

1.093,3« 
(211,046) 

(78,177) 
(633,223) 
(472,192) 
161,678 

(1«4.490) 
40 

8.150 

j .287.952 

131,324.373 

2,000 

3.007.710 

1.600 

2.783.046 

t32.59<{^9 t32U>18,845_ 

400 

224.664_ 

575.254 

$ 16.617,935. _$_ $ 16.797.040 $ 

See sccompenyfng notes to the tradgstery compaitson schedutes. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Special Revenue Fund -
District #1 Sales Tax 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Budgeted Amounts 

Budgetary fund balance at 
beginning of year 

Resources (Inflows) 
Local sources: 
Sales and use taxes 
Eamings on Investments 
Other 

Told local sources 

Other financing sources 
Transfers In 

Announts available for appropriations 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
Current: 
Instructional services: 
Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Other instructlonai programs 

Supportservices: 
Pupil support sen/tces 
InslrucKonal staff support services 
General administration 
School admlntetratlon 
Business services 
Plant services 
Stiident transportation services 
Central sen/ices 

Noninstructional services: 
Food service operations 
Facility acquisition and construction 

Original 
Budget 

$ 14.806,922 

6.272,500 
540,000 

-
6,812,500 

-

21.619.422 

2,159,312 
291,481 
362,041 

497,487 
231,711 

500 
86.024 
19.675 

1,310,826 
866,215 

10,675 

132.800 
-

Final 
Budget 

$ 14,826.241 

6,200,000 
475,000 

-
6,675.000 

494,300 

21.996,541 

4.796.921 
297,580 
386,701 

510.222 
202,221 

600 
87.100 
19,875 

1.818,780 
873.415 

10,825 

128,800 
133,000 

Actual 

$ 14.826.241 

6.179,920 
221,616 

500 
6,402.036 

631.358 

21,859,635 

3.087,864 
298,360 
229,770 

509,187 
182,026 

577 
85,971 
18,998 

2.024,354 
871,364 

10,795 

134,365 
-

Variance With 
Final Budget 

$ 

(20.080) 
(263.384) 

SOO 
(272.964) 

137.058 

(135„906) 
% 

1,709.057 
n220 

158,931 

1,035 
20',195 

23 
1,129 

877 
(205,574) 

2,051 
30 

<7,565) 
133,000 

Total charges to appropdatbns 5.988,747 9,264.040 7.451.631 1.812.409 

Budgetary fund balance 
at end of year $ 15.630.675 $ 12,731,501 $ 14,408.004 % 1,676,503 

See accompanying notes to the budgetary comparison schedules. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The School Board utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected 
in the financial stateinents: 

In September, the Business Manager submits to the School Board proposed annual appropriated 
budgets for the Qenez-al Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Funds for the 
fiscal year commencing the prior July 1. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer 
comments. Prior to September 15, the School Board legally enacts the budget through adoption. 
The only legal requiiement is that the School Board adopt a balanced budget; that is, total 
budgeted revenues and other financing sources (including fond balance) must equal or exceed 
total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. The budget is revised periodically 
throughout the school year, when deemed appropriate, but a balanced budget is alv/ays approved. 

The General Fund budget is adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Unencumbered 
appropriations in the General Fund lapse at the end of the fiscal year, whereas, encumbered 
appropriations are carried forward to the following year. Budgeted amounts are as originally 
adopted or as amended by the School Board. 

The Special Revenue Funds' and Debt Service Funds' budgets have annual ̂ propriated basdgets 
adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Except for grant-oriented fonds, unencumbered 
appropriations lapse at the end ofthe fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations are utilized ^vhen 
goods or services are received. Grant-oriented fond budgets are adopted at the time the grant 
applications are approved by the grantor. Sq}arate annual budgets are adopted for unencumhered 
approi^iations of grant-oriented Special Revenue Funds at the beginning ofthe folbwing fiscal 
year. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for 
the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds. All budgets are operational 
at the departmental or project level. The Superintendent and Business Manager ofthe School 
Board are authorized to transfer budget amounts between line item activity and between any 
functions of an individual fond; however, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total 
expenditures of any fond require School Board resolution. The effects of budget revisions passed 
during the year were insignificant to the budgets as originally approved. 
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Î uFFEY, HUFFMAN, RAGSDAÎ E & SOIGNIER 

John L. Luffey, MBA, CPA (1963-2002) 
Francis I. Huffman. CPA 
Philip A. Ragsdale. CPA 
David Ray Soignier, CPA, MBA 

(A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION) 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

John Herman, CPA 
Lynn Andries, CPA 
Esther Atteberry, CPA 
Sandra Harrington, CPA 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCLVL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type 
activities and each major fimd and the aggregate remaining fimd infonnation ofthe Ouachita 
Parish School Board (the School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which 
coUecfively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 18,2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United 
States; and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, issued by the Loiaisiana Society of Certified 
Public Accotmtants and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor. 

Intemal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the School Board's intemal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
om: opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness ofthe School Board's intemal control over fmancial reporting. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe School Board's intemal control over financial 
reporting. 

Our consideration of intemal control over fmancial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal 
control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over financial 
reportuig that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned fimctions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination 
of control deficiencies, tiiat adversely affects the School Board's ability to initiate, authorize, 
record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

1100 North 18th Street Monroe. Louisiana 71201 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement ofthe School Board's 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the School 
Board's intemal control. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Fmdings and Questions Costs listed as 09-01 to 09-03 to be significant deficiencies in the intemal 
control over financial reporting. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that 
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement ofthe financial statements will 
not be prevented or detected by the School Board's intemal control. 

Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in 
the intemal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily 
disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we 
consider item 09-01 to 09-03 of the significant deficiencies described above to be material 
weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's fmancial statements are 
firee of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the detennination of financial statement amoimts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 09-01. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management ofthe School Board in a separate letter 
dated December 18, 2009. 

The School Board's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the School Board's response and, 
accordingly, we express no opmion on it 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of the School Board, 
Federal avrarding agencies and pass-through entities, and other entities granting fimds to the School 
Board and the Legislative Auditor for tiie State of Louisiana and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

(A Professional Accoimting Corporation) 
December 18,2009 
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I^UFFEY, HuFFiViAN, RAQgDAI^E & S o i C N i E R 

(A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION) 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

John L. Luffey, MBA, CPA (1963-2002) 
Francis L Huffman, CPA 
PhtlipA. Ragsdale, CPA 
David Ray Soignier, CPA, MBA 

John Hennan, CPA 
Lynn Andries, CPA 
Esther Atteberry, CPA 
Sandra Hanington, CPA 

REPORT ON COMPLLVNCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance ofthe Ouachita Parish School Board (the School Board) with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office ofManagement and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133 CompUance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2009. The School Board's m^or Federal programs are identified m the 
Sumcmary of Auditor's Results section ofthe accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. Compliance with the reqmrements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to 
each of its major Federal programs is the responsibility ofthe School Board's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the School Board's compliance based on our audit 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and 
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major Federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence about the School Board's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination on the School Board's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the School Board is responsible for estabUshing and maintaining effective 
intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to Federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School 
Board's intemal control over compliance with the reqmrements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a m^or Federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressmg our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness on the School Board's intemal control over compliance. 

A control deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not aUow management or employees, in the normal course of perfomiing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of noncompliance requirement of a Federal 
program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control 
deficiencies, that adversely affects the School Board's ability to administer a Federal program such 
that there is more than a remote likelihood tiiat noncomphance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a Federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected 
by the School Board's intemal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that 
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncomphance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a Federal program will not be prevented or detected by die School Board's intemal 
control. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compUance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies m mtemal control 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of the School Board, 
Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and other entities granting funds to the School 
Board and the Legislative Auditor fbr the State of Louisiana and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document 

(A Professional Accountmg Corporation) 

December 18,2009 
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OUACHITA PARISH S C H O O L BOARD 
M O N R O E , LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES O F FEDERAL AWARDS 

AS O F AND F O R THE YEAR ENDED J U N E 30,2009 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 
PROGRAM TITLE 

C.F.D.A. 
NUMBER 

CASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

GRANT 
NUMBER 

PROGRAM 
DISBURSEMENTS 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
Passed tlirougb LooEsiaaa 

Department of Education: 
300/301 School Breakfast Program 
300/301 National School Lunch Program 
300/301 Summer Food Service Program for Children 

130 
130 
130 
130 
130 
130 
130 
130 
130 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 
Direct Programs: 
Air Force Juniw Reserve Officer Training Corps 
Army Junior Reserre Officer Training Corps 
Naval Junior Reserve OfOcer Training Corps 
Naval Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 
Naval Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 
Naval Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 
Naval Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 
Naval Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 
Naval Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 

10.553 
10.555 
10.559 

Not Available 
Not Available 
Not Available 
Not AvaUable 
Not Available 
Not Available 
Not Available 
Not Available 
Not Available 

Not Available $ 
Not Available 
Not Available 

LA050061 
LA331676 
JROTC091M369 
JROTC091M490 
N4982307MJ 
N4982308MJ 
N4982309MJ 
N963T708MJ 
N9637709MJ 

1,250,425 
3.554,261 

157,387 

4^62,073 

63,135 
50,295 

723 
723 

2.100 
16,930 
33,115 
24,646 
73,030 

264,696 

584 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
Passed through Ouachita Parish 
SherifTs Office: 

Public Safety Partnership and Commum'ty Policing Grants: 
Mctharaphetamine Initiative (2007-08) 

16.710 

2007CKWX0284 35,521 

645 

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
Direct Programs: 
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities-National Programs: 

Mentoring Program Grants (2007-08) 
84.I84B 

Q184B070789 264,351 

643 
Advanced Placement Program: 

Advanced PlKeraent Program (2007-08) 
84.330C 

S330C060138 501.378 

644 

640 

Funds for the Improvement of Education: 
At Home with Children's Literacy: School Success through 

Family hivolvement 
Preparing Students for Advanced STEM Courses 

84.215K 

U215K080047 
U215K080222 

173,818 

275,019 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Fedeial A'wards 107 



OUACHTTA PARISH S C H O O L BOARD 
M O N R O E , L O U I S U N A 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES O F FEDERAL AWARDS 

AS O F AND FOR T H E YEAR ENDED J U N E 30,2009 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 
PROGRAM TTTLE 

Passed tfarongfa Louisiana 
Department of Education: 

Adult Education-State Grant Program: 
540 Adult Education-Federai Funds (2008-09) 
520 Adult Education-Federal Funds (2007-08) 
525 Adult Education-Federal Funds (2006-07) 
542 Adult Education-Federal Supplemental (2008-09) 
522 Adult Education-Federal Supplemental (2007-08) 
541 Adult Education-Federal-Dept of Corrections (2008-09) 
521 Adult Education-Federal-Dept of Corrections (2007-08) 
557 Federal English Language/Ovics Program (2008^) 
524 Federal English Language/Ovics Program (2007-08) 
556 One Stop Centers (2008-09) 
526 One Stop Centers (2007-08) 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies: 
601 TiUe I Part A Basic (2007-08) 
601 TiUe I Part A Basic (2008-09) 
631 Title I Part A Basic-School Improvement (2006-07) 

Migrant Education-^tate Grant Program: 
657 Migrant Education Carryover (2006-07) 
658 Migrant Education Carryover (2007-08) 
656 Migrant Education (2007-08) 
676 Migrant Education (2008-09) 

Special Education-Grants to States: 
IDEA Part B (2007-08) 
IDEA Part B (2008-09) 

Vocational Education-Basic Grants to States: 
511 Cari Perkins Grant-Realloc^on (2007-08) 
510 Cari Perkins Grant (2008-09) 

CF.DJ^. 
NUMBER 

84.002A 

84.01 OA 

84.01 IA 

Special Education-Preschool Grants: 
532 Presdiool (2007-08) 

Preschool (2008-09) 

Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities-State Grants: 
Title TV (2007-08) 

604 Title IV (2008-09) 

84.027A 

84.048 

84.n3A 

84.186A 

GRANT 
NUMBER 

PROGRAM 
DISBURSEMENTS 

280944-37 
280844-37 
280744-37 
280921-37 
280821-37 
280923-37 
280823-37 
280907-37 
280807-37 
280913-37 
280813-37 

S010A070018 
S01OA080018 
2807TA-37 

2807MI-37C 
2808M1-37C 
2808M1-37 
2809M1-37 

H027A070033 
H027A080033 

280802-37C 
280902-37 

H173A070082 
H173A080082 

Q186A070019 
Q186A080019 

183.729 
64.273 

-
618 
355 

10,794 
1.479 

22.280 
1,194 
2,535 
2.012 

289,269 

171.667 
3,974,893 

11.896 
4,158.456 

13^59 
56,583 
57,895 

147,696 
275,533 

972.183 
2,900,118 
3.872.301 

15,879 
189,248 
205,127 

8.082 
43.837 
51.919 

32,920 
32.655 
65.575 

Sec Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awaida 



654 
674 

605 

639 
609 
619 
629 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

M O N R O E , LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES O F FEDERAL AWARDS 

AS O F AIVD F O R T H E YEAR ENDED J U N E 30,2009 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR; 
PROGRAM TITLE 

Education for Homeless Children and Youth: 
Homeless (2006-07) 
Homeless (2008-09) 

Even Start-State Educational Agencies; 
671 Even Start (2006-07) 
650 Even Start (2007-08) 
670 Even Start (2008-09) 

CF.DA. 
NUMBER 

84.196A 

84.213C 

GRANT 
NUMBER 

2807H1-37C 
2809HI-37 

2S07F2-37 
2808FI-37 
2809FI-37 

PROGRAM 
DISBURSEMENTS 

5,594 
61,064 
66.658 

21,284 
33,035 

517,043 

State Grants for Innovative Programs: 
Tide V (2007-08) 

Education Technology State Grants; 
Enhancing Education Through Technology-Carryover (2006-07) 
Enhancing Education Through Technology (2007-08) 
Enhancing E<hication Through Technology-Canyover (2007-08) 
Enhancing Education Throu^ Technology (2008-09) 

84.298A 

84.318X 

571,362 

S298A70018 

280749-37C 
280849-37 
280849-37C 
280949-37 

9.324 

3.873 
1,878 

11,353 
32,902 
50,006 

646 Adcanced Placement Test Fee Program: 
Advanced Placement Test Fee Program (2007-08) 

84.330B 
5,454 

English Language Acquisition Grants: 
Title m (2007-08) 

603 Title m (2008-09) 

Mathematics and Science Partno^hips: 
612 Math and Science Partnerships (2007-08) 
632 Math and Science Partnerships (2008-09) 

Paued through Morehouse Parish School Board: 
642 Math and Science Partnerships (2007-08) 

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants: 
Tide n Part A (2007-08) 

602 Title n Part A (2008-09) 

84.365A 

84.366B 

84.367A 

T365A0700I8 
T365A0800I8 _ 

2808MP-37 
2809MP-37 

2808MP-34 

S367A070017 
S367A080017 _ 

3,272 
18.105 
21,377 

89,653 
79.606 

42,487 
211,746 

100,729 
808,608 
909.337 

Passed through Morehouse 
Parish School Board: 

Even Start Migrant Education: 
Migrant Education Even Start 

84.214A 
S2I4A060032 58,151 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 11,862^2 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awaids 109 



OUACHITA PARISH S C H O O L BOARD 
M O N R O E , LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES O F F E D E R A L AWARDS 

AS O F AND FOR T H E YEAR ENDED J U N E 30,2009 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 
PROGRAM TITLE 

CFJDwi. 
NUMBER 

93.558 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
Passed through Louisiana 

Department of Education: 
Temporary Assistance fw: Needy Families: 

523 Strategic to Empower People (2008-09) 
573 Job's fbr America's Graduates-TANF (1) Employ 
573 EMPLOY Reimbursement U 
574 After-Scfaool-For-AH 
570 LA-4/Starting Points Pre-Kindcrgartcn Programs (2006-07) 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF CASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

GRANT 
NUMBER 

PROGRAM 
DISBURSEMENTS 

2809EP-37 
2809J2-37 
2809JE-37 
2809OS-37 
280735-37 

$ 

5,412 
35,117 

377 
25,986 
16,403 
83,295 

83,295 

17,207^26 

NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

UNTIED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Agriculture: 

300 Food Donation (Commodities) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

10.550 SCH075 

508>591 

17,716,517 

Sec Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards no 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

JUNE 30,2009 

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes all Federal 
grant activity of the Ouachita Parish School Board (the School Board) for the year 
ended June 30, 2009 and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
The modified accrual basis of accountmg recognizes revenues when they become 
both measurable and available to pay current period liabilities and expenditures when 
the related liability is incurred. 

Note 2 - Relationship of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to the Financial 
Statements 

The followmg reconciliation is provided to help the reader ofthe School Board's 
financial statements and supplementary information relate such mformation to the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the year ended June 30, 2009: 

Revenues: 
General Fund 
School Food Services 
Titlel 
IDEAB 
Other Federal 

Total Govemmental Funds Revenues 
Less NonExpenditure revenues 
Total Govemmental Funds Expenditures 
Agency Fund Expenditures 
Total Federal Expenditures 

Federal 
Programs 

$ - $ 
4,962,073 
5,002,879 
3,924,220 
2,977,033 

16,741,535 
16,402 

16,757,937 
60,623 

$ 16,818,560 $ 

Other 
Federal 
Support 

264,696 $ 
508,591 

-
-
-

613,775 
-

613,775 
-

613,775 $ 

Total 

264,696 
5,470,664 
5,002.879 
3,924,220 
2,977,033 

17,639,492 
16,402 

17,655,894 
60,623 

17,716,517 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009 

Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unqualified 

hitemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Material Weakness(es) identified? X Yes No 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified not considered to be material 
weaknesses? Yes X No None Reported 

Noncompliance material to fmancial statements noted? Yes X_ No 

Federal Awards 

hitemal Control Over Major Programs 

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes JL- No 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified not considered to be material 
weakness(es)? Yes X No N̂one Reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 

Any audit fmdings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 
Circular A-133, Section 510(a)? Yes X No 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs 
$531,496 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No 

Identification of Major Programs 

CFDA# PROGRAM TITLE 
84.01 OA Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
84.330C Advanced Placement Program 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009 

Section II - Financial Statement Findmgs and Questioned Costs: 

09-01 Local Government Budget Act 

Finding 

The Local Government Budget Act provides, among other things, for the amendment ofthe budget 
when actual expenditures exceed budgeted amounts by 5% or more and that a budget should not be 
adopted wherein budgeted expenditures exceed estimated amounts available to fimd them. 

In fiscal year 2009, the School Board has two special revenue funds that exceeded its budget by 5% 
of estimated expenditures which were not amended. The West Ouachita Sales Tax Fund had 
budgeted expenditures of $68,800 and actual expenditures of $185,040 resulting in a $116,240 
(169%) unfavorable variance. Overall, this fimd had a net increase in fund balance by $1,763,696 
from June 30, 2008's balance $3,918,347 to June 30 2009's balance of $5,682,043. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the School Board and the business manager continue to work together to 
monitor the fmancial position and resources of all fimds to provide for sound financial planning. 
Overall 

Response 

West Ouachita Sales Tax Fund's expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures due to the Board 
authori2dng more school repairs than originally anticipated. 

09-02 Internal controls over Accounts Payable and Payroll 

Finding 
During the review of mtemal controls, we noted where the School Board does not have adequate 
controls over certain areas of accounts payable. 

Accounts Payable - For computer-generated checks, the accounts payable accountant prepares 
checks, submits checks for printing including the computer generated signature, receives the checks 
after printing and mails the checks. Additionally, the accounts payable accountant can set up 
vendors or change vendor information without anyone's approval. 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009 

Payroll - Payroll can independently set up an employee wdthout review by the Personnel Department 
which could result in an unauthorized person being set up. Additionally, payroll changes are not 
reviewed by someone independent ofthe Payroll accountant entering the data. 

Recommendation 

Accounts Payable - For accounts payable, the School Board should have someone other than the 
Accounts Payable accountant receive and mail the checks. The Accounts Payable accountant should 
not have access to setting up vendors. 

Payroll - The Personnel Director should receive an exceptions report that reflects changes in payroll 
from the previously processed payroll. This report would reflect all new employees and at 
management's discretion reflect certain changes in other information (either all changes or a certain 
percent or dollar change) such as pay grades, or employee deductions such as for insurance or 
employee annuity contributions. TTiis report should be reviewed by the Personnel Director and if 
necessary traced back to the supporting documentation authorizing the hiring ofthe employee. 

Response 
With respect to Accounts Payable, we will review the issues cited and adjust our procedures 
accordingly. For Payroll, we have already created this report and it is being given to the Personnel 
Director every month for his review. 

09-03 Financial Reporting 

Finding 

Cash - On Jime 28,2009, the School Board had requested that a certain amount of investments be 
sold. All but $900,000 had been sold as of June 30,2009. The remaining $900,000 was sold on July 
1,2009 but was reported in fiscal year 2009 (a one day error) which resulted an in over-reporting of 
cash and under-reporting investments. Another reconciliation error occurred when the School Board 
purchased a $1,467,464 certificate of deposit on June 24,2009. The expected entries on the School 
Board were recorded. However, the bank did not withdraw the funds fi"om the School Board's 
checking account until July 10,2009. This bank error led to an error on the bank reconciliation in 
which the $1,467,464 was not noted as being outstanding but another check for $1,551,425 was 
shown as outstanding but was instead a July 2009 check and therefore was not ̂ plicable to the June 
2009 reconciliation. As a result, the bank reconcOiation was shown with an unknown reconciling 
difference of $97,479, The actual amount of cash per the general ledger vras correctly stated related 
to this issue. Once these two items were corrected, the unknown reconcilmg difference was $13,912. 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISLVNA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009 

Capital Assets - During fiscal year 2009, the State of Louisiana's Department of Education informed 
all school boards to change its capitalization policy for capital assets from $1,000 to $5,000 per item 
effective July 1,2008. This change was made bythe School Board on a retroactive basis resulting in 
removing all assets below $5,000 which totaled $4,522,802 (net). However, this change should have 
been made on a prospective basis meaning that all purchases on or after July 1, 2008 should be 
capitalized based on the $5,000 threshold. As a result, the fmancial statements were adjusted to add 
back the assets below $5,000 that had been removed resultmg in additions to capital assets of 
$4,522,802 and an addition to depreciation expense. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the School Board ascertain a complete understanding of an entry before entering 
it into the financial records. While there are only two items cited above that impacted the financial 
statements, the magnitude of these items would have resulted in a material misstatement of the 
School Board's financial statements. Additionally, bank reconciliations should not have an un
reconciled difference. 

Response 

On the $900,000 error this should be regarded in the same manner as a late deposit. The transaction 
was requested before June 30,2009, but the treasuries could not be sold on the open market on the 
day requested. They were sold on July 1,2009 and the cash funds were deposited into the School 
Board's checking account on July 1,2009. It was a reconciling item on the June bank reconciliation 
in the same manner as a late deposit would be. On the $1,467,464 bank error which was posted in 
the School Board's financial records before the bank statement was received. The bank employee 
sent an email confirming this transaction with a copy ofthe certificate of deposit for the new amount 
including the $ 1,467,464 increase in the cd in June. The bank did not withdraw the funds from the 
checking account until July 10,2009, but the certificate of deposit was increased on June 24,2009 
causing the bank's records to be out of balance for three weeks. A check for a similar amount was 
thought to be the reason for the bank reconciliation to be out of balance. This check was then listed 
as a reconciling item. When it was discovered that the check was not the reconcilmg item and, 
therefore, not the cause ofthe bank reconciliation to be out of balance, the matter was researched and 
the bank error was found to be the cause ofthe problem. This was corrected as soon as possible. 

The business manager will check all bank reconciliations in the fiiture. 

As far as the capital assets issue cited above, we will review the standards related to accounting 
changes closer in the future. 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009 

Section HI - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs: 

None reported. 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

The following is a summary of the status of the prior year findings included m Luffey Huffinan, 
Ragsdale & Soignier (APAC) audit report dated December 31, 2008 in connection with the audit 
ofthe financial statements ofthe Ouachita Parish School Board (the School Board) as of and for 
the year ended Jime 30,2008. 

08-01: Local Budget Act 

Finding 

In fiscal year 2008, the School Board has two special revenue funds that exceeded its 
budget by 5% of estunated expenditures which were not amended. The West Ouachita 
Sales Tax Fund had budgeted expenditures of $948,225 and actual expenditures of 
$1,024,955 resulting in a $76,730 (8.09%) unfavorable variance. The School Food 
Service Fund had budgeted expenditures of $8,553,843 and actual expenditures of 
$9,234,830 resulting m a $680,987 (7.96%) unfavorable variance, hi addition, this fiind 
ended the year with a $782,941 fund deficit. 

Status 

See finding 09-01, However, note that the unfavorable variance in the School Food 
Service Fund was eliminated in fiscal year 2009. 

08-02: Reconciliation of Payroll Accounts 

Finding 

The School Board did not have a reconcihation of its various payroll liability accounts. 
As a result, the School Board had two errors involving payroll accounts that were 
undetected. These items resulted ui a $537,420 understatement of cash, a $951,404 
understatement of liabilities, a $413,984 overstatement of fund balance and a $413,984 
understatement of expenses. The $413,984 error was the result of miscoding a check to a 
liability account instead of an expenditure account The $537,420 error resulted from 
posting an incorrect amount (posted a gross amount instead of a net amount) regardmg 
the Summer 1 payroll. 

Status 

The School Board has corrected this issue in fiscal year 2009. 
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OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISUNA 

SUMMARY STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

Management Letter 

Documentation of Internal Control 

Finding 

The School Board did not have adequate documentation of intemal control over fmancial 
reporting using the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) fi-amework so that 
the School Board could more easily discharge its responsibility to design and implement 
controls and monitor those controls for effectiveness over time. 

Status 

We contracted with a local CPA firm last year after receiving the 2008 management letter 
to work with us to formalize and document our intemal controls. Given the size and 
complexity of the School Board's operations, we have not completed this task but 
continue to work on it as time permits. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data 
School Board Members' Compensation 

June 30,2009 

The schedule of compensation paid to School Board members was prepared in compliance with 
House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 ofthe 1979 session ofthe Louisiana Legislature. 

The compensation of the School Board members is mcluded in the general administration 
expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the 
School Board members have elected the monthly pajonent method of compensation. Under this 
method, the members of the School Board received $800 per month. Additionally, the president 
received $100 per month for exercising the duties of his office. 

Board Member ] 

Mr. Jack White, President 
Mr. Scott Robinson 
Mr. A. R, "Red" Sims 
Mr. Jerry R. Hicks, Vice President 
Rev. John R Russell 
Mr. Carey Walker 
Ms Susan Spence 

Total 

Distric 

A 
B 
C 
D 
E 
F 
G 

t Amount 

$ 10,800 
9,600 
9,600 
9,600 
9,600 
9,600 
9,600 

$ 68,400 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MONROE, LOUISIANA 

We have performed the procedures included in the Lomsiana Governmental Audit Guide and 
enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of Ouachita Parish School 
Board (the School Board) and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana (collectively, the 
Specified Users), solely to assist users in evaluating management's assertions about the 
perfonnance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of Ouachita 
Parish School Board and to determine whether the specified schedules are free of obvious 
errors and omissions as provided by the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education 
(BESE). This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified PubUc Accountants and 
applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures 
is solely the responsibility of the Specified Users of the report. Consequentiy, we make no 
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the 
purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

Our procedures and fmdings relate to the accompanying schedules required by state law and 
areas follows: 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 
(Schedule I) 

1. We selected a random sample of 25 transactions and reviewed supporting documentation 
to detemiine ifthe sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctiy and are reported 
in the proper amounts for each ofthe following amounts reported on the schedule: 

• Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures, 
• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures, 
• Total Local Taxation Revenue, 
• Total Local Eamings on Investment in Real Property, 
• Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes, 
• Nonpublic Textbook Revenue, and 
• Nonpublic Transportation Revenue. 

1100 North 18th Street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Tel: {318)387-2672 • Fax: (318)322-8866 • Website: www.afullservicecpafirm.com 

MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTiFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

http://www.afullservicecpafirm.com


Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Education Levels of Public School Staff'(Schedule 2) 

2. We reconciled the total number of full-time classroom teachers per the schedule "Experience 
of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to the combined total 
number of fiill-time classroom teachers per this schedule and to School Board supporting 
payroll records as ofOctober 1st. 

3. We reconciled the combined total of principals and assistant principals per the schedule 
"Experience of Public Principals and FuU-thne Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to the 
combined total of principals and assistant principals per this schedule. 

4. We obtained a Ust of fuU-tirae teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification 
as of October 1 st and as reported on the schedule. We traced a random sample of 35 teachers 
to the individual's personnel file and determined if tbe individuars education level was 
properly classified on the schedule. 

Number and Type of Public Schools (Schedule 3) 

5. We obtained a list of schools by type as reported on the schedule. We compared the list to 
the schools and grade levels as reported on the Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
(CFDA 84.010) appUcation and/or tiie National School Lunch Program (CFDA 10.555) 
application. 

Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers (Schedule 4) 

6. We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification 
as of October 1st and as reported on tiie schedule and traced the same sample used in 
procedure 4 to the mdividual's personnel file and determined if the individual's experience 
vras properly classified on the schedule. 

Public School Staff Data (Schedule 5) 

7. We obtained a list of aU classroom teachers including their base salary, extra compensation, 
and ROTC or rehired retiree status as weU as fiill-time equivalent as reported on the schedule 
and traced a random sample of 35 teachers to the mdividual's personnel file and determmed 
if the individual's salary, extra compensation, and fiill-tmie equivalents were properly 
included on the schedule. 

8. We recalculated the average salaries and fiill-time equivalents reported in the schedule. 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 6} 

9. We obtained a list of classes by school, school type, and class size as reported on the 
schedule and reconciled school type classifications to Schedule 3 data, as obtained in 
procedure 5. We then traced a random sample of 10 classes to the October 1st roll books for 
those classes and determined ifthe class was properly classified on the schedule. 

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAF) for the 21st Century (Schedule 7) 

10. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported 
by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21st Century (Schedule 8) 

11. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported 
by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

The iLEAP Tests (Schedule 9) -

12. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported 
by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

Our twelve procedures enumerated above did not disclose any exceptions. 

We were not engaged to, and did not, perform an examination, the objective ofwhich would be 
the expression of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 
attention tiiat would have been reported to you. 

This report is intended solely for the use of management of the Specified Users, the Louisiana 
Department of Education and the Louisiana Legislature and should not be used by those who 
have not agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures 
for their purposes. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the 
Legislative Aiwiitor as a pubUc document. 

. -0 ^ 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

December 18,2009 



OUACHTTA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedules Required by State Law 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Schedule 1 - General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local 
Revenue Sources 

This schedule includes general fund instructional and equipment expenditures. It also contains 
local taxation revenue, eamings on investments m real property, revenue in lieu of taxes, and 
nonpublic textbook and transportation revenue. This data is used either in the Minimum 
Foundation Program (MFP) formula or is presented annually m the MFP 70% Expenditure 
Requirement Report. 

Schedule 2 - Education Levels of Public School Staff 

This schedule includes the certificated and uncertificated number and percentage of full-time 
classroom teachers and the number and percentage of principals and assistant principals with less 
than a Bachelor's; Bachelor's; Master's; Master's +30; Specialist in Education; and Ph. D or Ed. 
D. degrees. This data is currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual Financial and 
Statistical Report (AFSR). 

Schedule 3 - Number and Type of Public Schools 

This schedule includes the number of elementary, middle/junior high, secondary and 
combination schools in operation during the fiscal year. This data is currentiy reported to the 
Legislature in the AFSR. 

Schedule 4 - Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers 

This schedule includes the number of years of experience in teaching for assistant principals, 
principals, and fuU-time classroom teachers. This data is currently reported to the Legislature in 
tiie AFSR. 

Schedule 5 - Public School Staff Data 

This schedule includes average classroom teacher's salary using fuU-time equivalents, including 
and excludmg ROTC and rehired retkee teachers. This data is currently reported to the 
Legislature in the AFSR. 

Schedule 6 - Class Size Characteristics 

This schedule includes the percent and number of classes with student enrollment in the 
following ranges: 1-20, 21-26, 27-33, and 34+ students. This data is currentiy reported to the 
Legislature in the Aimual School Report (ASR). 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedules Required by State Law 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Schedule 7 - Loaisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) for the 21"* Century 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scores by 
district for grades 4 and 8 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Proficient, 
Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data. 

Schedule 8 - The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21"̂  Century 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scores by 
district for grades 10 and 11 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, 
Proficient, Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of 
data. 

Schedule 9 - The iLEAP Tests 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes a summary score for 
grades 3, 5, 6, 7 and 9 for this district. The summary score reported is the National PercentUe 
Rank showing relative position or rank as compared to a large, representative sample of students 
in the same grade fi'om the entire nation. This schedule includes three years of data. 



Schedule 1 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures 
and C«tain Local Revenue Sources 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

General Fund Instructional and Equipment Eipenditnres 
General Fnnd Instructional Expenditures: 
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities: 

Classroom Teacher Salaries 
Other Instructiona] Staff Activities 
Employee Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Instructional Materials and Suj^lies 
histructional Equipment 

Total Teacho" and Student Interaction Activities 
Other Instructional Activities 
PnpU Support Activities 
Less: Equipment for Pupil Support Activities 

Net Pupil Support Activities 
Instructitmal Staff Services 

Less: Equipment for Instructional Staff Services 
Net Instructional Staff Services 

School Administration: 
Less: Equipment for Instructional Staff Services 
Net School Administration 

Total General Fund &istructional Expenditures 

Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 

Certain Local Revenue Sources 
Local Taxation Revenue: 

Constitutional Ad Valoran Taxes 
Renewable Ad Valorem Tax 
Debt Service Ad Valorem Tax 
Up to 1% of Collecticms by the Sheriff 

on Taxes Othw than School Taxes 
Sales and Use Taxes 

Total Local Taxation Revenue 

Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property: 
Eamings from 16th Section Property 
Eamings from Other Real Properly 

Total Local Eamin^ on hivestment in Real Property 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes: 
Revenue Sharing - Constitutional Tax 
Revenue Sharing - Other Taxes 
Revenue Sharing - Excess Portion 
Other Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 

Nonpublic Transportation Revenue 

40,754,678 
1,773,996 

17^88,437 
71,791 

812^50 
27,049 

4,503,226 

4,608,883 

9,143,993 

$ 

$ ^ 

$ 

61,028^01 
80337 

4,503,226 

4,608,883 

9,143,993 

79,364,640 

622,585 

2,358,521 
10,995,761 
4,631,173 

4^6,967 
37,697,295 
56,149,717 

78.181 

78.181 

190,711 
639,876 

$ 

$ 

$ 

830.587 

41^23 

-
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Schedule 3 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Number and Type of Public Schools 
Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30,2009 

Type Number 

PreK-K 
Elementary 
Middle/Jr. High 
Se£X>ndary 
Combination 
Altemative (6-12 only) 

1 
20 
7 
4 
2 
1 

Total 35 



Schedule 4 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers 
As ofOctober 1,2008 

Assistant Principals 
Principals 
Classroom Teachers 

Total 

0-1 Yr. 
-
-

109 
109 

2-3 Yrs. 
-
-

127 
127 

LTT ••:'•• J 

4-10 Yrs. 

3 
-

321 
324 

11-14 Yrs. 

5 
3 

167 
175 

15-19 Yrs. 
9 
5 

184 
198 

20-24 Yrs. 

7 
8 

154 
169 

25+ Yrs. 
19 
19 

269 
307 

Total 

43 
35 

1,331 
1,409 



Schedule 5 

OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Public School Staff Data 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 

Classroom Teachers 
All Classroom Excluding ROTC 

Teachers and Rehired Retirees 

Average Classroom 
Teachers' Salary 
Including Extra Compensation $49,250 $48,835 

Average Classroom 
Teachers' Salary 
Excluding Extra Compensation $47,692 $47,290 

Number of Teacher FuU-time 
Equivalents (FTEs) used in 
Computation of Average Salaries 1,315 1,266 

Note: Figures reported include all sources of fimding (i.e., federal, state, and local) but exclude 
employee benefits. Generally, retired teachers rehired to teach receive less compensation than 
non-retired teachers and ROTC teachers receive more compensation because of a federal 
supplement. Therefore, these teachers are excluded from the computation in the last column. 
This schedule excludes day-to-day substitutes and temporary employees. 

10 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Class Sire Characteristics 
As ofOctober 1,2008 

Schedale 6 

School Type 
Eletrtentary 
Elementary Activity Classes 
Middle/Jr. Higji 
Middle/Jr. High Activity Classes 
Higb 
High Activity Classes 
Combination 
Combination Activity Classes 
Total 

1-
Percent 

52.6% 
50.3% 
69.7% 
84.6% 
76.4% 
87.3% 
99.5% 

100.0% 

20 
Number 

2,367 
73 

952 
297 

1,475 
349 
202 

7 

21-
Percent 

44.5% 
46.9% 
26.7% 
11.7% 
20.9% 

4.8% 
0.0% 
0,0% 

aassSiM 
•26 

Number 
2,004 

68 
364 

41 
403 

19 
-
-

»Range 
27-

Percent 
2.8% 
2.8% 
3.6% 
2.0% 
2.7% 
3.0% 
0.5% 
0.0% 

•33 
Number 

125 
4 

49 
7 

53 
12 

1 
-

34+ 
Percent 

0.1% 
0.0% 
0.1% 
1.7% 
0.0% 
5.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

Number 
4 
-
1 
6 
-

20 
-
-

Note: The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of classes at various 
grade levels. The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and maximum enrollment in grades 4-12 is 33 students. 
These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physical education, chorus, band, and other classes without maximum 
enrollment standards. Therefore, these classes are included only as separate line iteriB. 
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ouACurrA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
iLEAP Teste 

Three Fiscal Years Ended Jane 30,2009 

Scbedalc 9 

iLEAP Tests 
District AcfalevemcDt 

Level Rec tilts 

Grades 
Advanced 
Mastay 
Basic 
ApproachinR Basic 
Umatisfkctory 

Total 

English LanguaseArfs 
2007 

Number 

91 
427 
651 
166 
97 

1432 

Percent 

6 
30 
45 
12 
7 

Mathematics 
2007 

Number 

152 
395 
647 
162 
77 

1433 

Percent 

11 
28 
45 
11 
5 

Science 
2007 

Number 

74 
308 
700 
271 
79 

1432 

Percent 

5 
22 
49 
19 
6 

Social Studies 
2007 

Number 

45 
370 
715 
198 
104 

1432 

Percent 

3 
26 
50 
14 
7 

District Achievement 
Level Resalts 

Grades 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisftctory 

Total 

English LansuaKc Arts 
2007 

Number 

60 
337 
651 
218 
85 

1351 

percent 

4 
25 
48 
16 
6 

Mathematics 
2007 

Number 

100 
223 
703 
201 
125 
1352 

Percent 

7 
16 
52 
15 
9 

Science 
2007 

Namber 

55 
316 
616 
256 
108 
1351 

Percent 

4 
23 
46 
19 
8 

Social Studies 
2007 

Number 

80 
290 
686 
181 
114 
1351 

Percent 

6 
21 
51 
13 
8 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 6 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
ApproadunR Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

Eoglish Laneuage Arts 
2007 

Number 

88 
320 
677 
164 
56 

1305 

percent 

7 
25 
52 
13 
4 

Mathematics 
2007 

Number 

102 
208 
738 
142 
115 

1305 

Percent 

8 
16 
57 
U 
9 

Science 
2007 

Number 

60 
289 
596 
271 
88 

1304 

Percent 

5 
22 
46 
21 
7 

Social Studies 
2007 

Number 

70 
172 
674 
256 
132 
1304 

Percent 

5 
13 
52 
20 
10 

-
District Achievement 

Level Results 

Grade? 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approacfain« Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English LansuBge Arts 
2007 

Number 

81 
307 
654 
238 
88 

1368 

Percent 

6 
22 
48 
17 
6 

Mathematics 
2007 

Number 

95 
181 
700 
264 
129 

1369 

Percent 

7 
13 
51 
19 
9 

Science 
2007 

Number 

54 
266 
587 
353 
108 

1368 

Percent 

4 
19 
43 
26 
8 

Social Studies 
2007 

Number 

25 
212 
713 
253 
163 

1366 

Percent 

2 
16 
52 
19 
12 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 9 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

EuKlisfa Language Arts 
2007 

Number 

19 
195 
722 
262 
106 

1304 

Percent 

1 
15 
55 
20 
8 

Mathematics 
2007 

Number 

89 
166 
613 
213 
223 
1304 

Percent 

7 
13 
47 
16 
17 

Continued 
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OUACHrrA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ILEAP Tests 

Three Fiscal Years Ended Jane 30,2009 

Schedule 9 

ILEAP Tests 
District Achievement 

Levd Results 

Grades 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

Enelish Language Arts 
200S 

Number 

92 
353 
729 
237 
98 

1509 

Percent 

6 
23 
48 
16 
6 

Mathematics 
2008 

Number 

94 
282 
730 
248 
155 

1509 

Percent 

6 
19 
4S 
16 
10 

Science 
2008 

Number 

76 
253 
717 
352 
111 

1509 

Percent 

5 
17 
48 
23 
7 

Social Studies 
2008 

Number 

61 
298 
768 
242 
140 

1509 

Percent 

4 
20 
51 
16 
9 

District AcUrvement 
Level Results 

Grades 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approadtiing Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English LanguaKc Arts 
2008 

Number 

67 
306 
669 
221 
79 

1342 

Percent 

5 
23 
50 
16 
6 

Mathematics 
2008 

Number 

114 
210 
701 
177 
140 
1342 

Percent 

8 
16 
52 
13 
10 

Science 
2008 

Number 

51 
250 
645 
311 
85 

1342 

Percent 

4 
19 
48 
23 
6 

Sodal Studies 
2008 

Number 

77 
290 
682 
199 
94 

1342 

Percent 

6 
22 
51 
15 
7 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 6 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
ApproachiiiR Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2008 

Number 

58 
296 
733 
206 
89 

1382 

Percent 

4 
21 
53 
15 
6 

Mathematics 
2008 

Number 

U6 
207 
746 
176 
137 
1382 

Percent 

8 
15 
54 
13 
10 

Science 
2008 

Nnml>er 

55 
270 
692 
258 
104 
1380 

Percent 

2 
20 
50 
19 
8 

Social Studies 
2008 

Number 

73 
204 
660 
290 
153 

1380 

Percent 

5 
15 
48 
21 
11 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 7 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approachins Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2008 

Number 

120 
287 
662 
217 
60 

1346 

Percent 

9 
21 
49 
16 
4 

Mathematics 
2008 

Number 

65 
153 
757 
230 
HI 
1346 

Percent 

5 
11 
56 
17 
10 

Science 
2008 

Number 

33 
240 
656 
286 
129 
1344 

Percent 

2 
18 
49 
21 
10 

Social Studies 
2008 

Number 

27 
174 
730 
255 
155 
1341 

Percent 

2 
13 
54 
19 
12 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 9 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approachinft Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2008 

Number 

23 
240 
774 
244 
49 

1330 

Percent 

2 
18 
58 
18 
4 

Mathematics 
2008 

Number 

119 
157 
703 
215 
134 

1328 

Percent 

9 
15 
53 
16 
10 Continued 

16 



OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
iLEAP Tests 

Three Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2009 

Schedule 9 

ILEAP Tests 
District Achievement 

Level Results 

Grade 3 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2009 

Number 

100 
417 
663 
202 
92 

1474 

Percent 

7 
28 
45 
14 
6 

Mathematics 
2009 

Number 

173 
361 
652 
211 
77 

1474 

Percent 

12 
24 
44 
14 
5 

Science 
2009 

Number 

83 
315 
683 
308 
84 

1473 

Percent 

6 
21 
46 
21 
6 

Social Studies 
2009 

Number 

25 
367 
713 
252 
114 
1471 

Percent 

2 
25 
48 
17 
8 

District Achievement 
Level Resalts 

Grades 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2009 

Number 

70 
335 
706 
195 
57 

1363 

Percent 

5 
25 
52 
14 
4 

Mathematics 
2009 

Number 

124 
197 
721 
201 
121 
1364 

Percent 

9 
14 
53 
15 
9 

Science 
2009 

Number 

85 
278 
672 
259 
69 

1363 

Percent 

6 
20 
49 
19 
5 

Sodal Studies 
2009 

Number 

64 
280 
689 
231 
99 

1363 

Percent 

5 
21 
51 
17 
7 • 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 6 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

Englisb Language Arts 
i m 

Number 

52 
268 
786 
188 
66 

1360 

Percent 

4 
20 
58 
14 
S 

Mathematics 
2009 

Numtier 

126 
240 
768 
137 
89 

1360 

Percent 

9 
18 
56 
10 
7 

Sdence 
2009 

Number 

62 
284 
623 
289 
99 

1357 

Percent 

5 
21 
46 
21 
7 

Social Studies 
2009 

Number 

94 
176 
693 
280 
114 
1357 

Percent 

7 
13 
51 
21 
8 

District Achievement 
Level Results 

Grade 7 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approadiing Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2009 

Number 

86 
293 
702 
237 
91 

1409 

Percent 

6 
21 
50 
17 
6 

Mathematics 
2009 

Number 

• 128 
228 
719 
208 
126 
1409 

PrrcvBt 

9 
16 
51 
15 
9 

Sdence 
2009 

Number 

64 
331 
615 
282 
115 
1407 

Percent 

5 
24 
44 
20 
8 

Sodal Studies 
2009 

Number 

47 
279 
678 
288 

m 
1403 

Percent 

3 
20 
48 
21 

District Achievement 
Levd Results 

Grade 9 
Advanced 
Mastery 
Basic 
Approaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

Total 

English Language Arts 
2009 

Number 

10 
223 
754 
236 
51 

1274 

Percent 

1 
18 
59 
19 
4 

Mathematics 
2009 

Number 

108 
241 
615 
189 
122 
1275 

Percent 

8 
19 
48 
15 
10 Conduded 

17 


